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NOTICE OF 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Seventh Annual General Meeting (“the AGM”) of the members of PEERLESS
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED will be held on Thursday, 14th August, 2025 at 12.30 P.M. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business. The venue of the AGM
shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company at Peerless Bhavan, 3, Esplanade East, Kolkata 700
069.

ORDINARY BUSINESS - ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31st March 2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Reappointment of Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Director (DIN: 07666744)

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Director (DIN: 07666744) who retires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration, and to consider and if thought
fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any,
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification,
amendment, substitution or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the provisions of
RBI Notification No. RBI/2021- 22/25 Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021,
M/s. MK Dandeker & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.: 0006795/S000103), be and they are hereby
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a continuous period of three years, subject to the firm
continuing to fulfill the applicable eligibility norms, to hold office from the conclusion of this 37th Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 40th Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2028, at such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. Appointment of Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741) as a Director of the Company
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder, Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741), who was appointed as
an Additional Director on the Board of Directors of the Company, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended) w.e.f. October 07, 2024, be and is be and is hereby appointed a Director of the Company.”

5. Appointment of Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741) as the Wholetime Director & Chief Financial Officer
of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time, read with
Schedule V of the Act, and Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such other
approval, if any, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Partha
Bose (DIN : 10745741), as Wholetime Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company for a period of 1 Year
with effect from 7th October, 2024 upon the terms and conditions set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed
to the Notice convening this meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors of the Company [hereinafter referred
to as “the Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise
its powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution, to alter and vary terms and conditions of the said
appointment including remuneration, in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Partha Bose.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary
for obtaining necessary approvals, if any, whether statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and
to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and execute necessary deeds, applications,
documents, agreements and writings, forms, returns etc. that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally
to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental forgiving
effect to this Resolution.”

Kolkata,

Dated : 1st July, 2025 By Order of the Board

Registered Office: For Peerless Financial Services Limited

Peerless Bhavan, Biswajit Das

3, Esplanade East, Company Secretary

Kolkata 700069 Membership No. A23043

NOTES :

1. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the special business
under item nos. 4 and 5 is annexed hereto.

2. M/s.S.N. Kulkarni & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.: 105441W), Statutory Auditors, were appointed
at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31/08/2022, for a period of three consecutive years
from the conclusion of the 34thAGM. Their term will expire at the conclusion of the ensuing 37th AGM to be
held in this calendar year 2025.
Pursuant to the provisions of RBI Notification No. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref. No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-
22 dated April 27, 2021 the appointment of Statutory Auditors shall be made by NBFCs for a period of 3 consecutive
years. M/s. M K Dandeker & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.: 0006795/S000103) of 2nd Floor,
NewNo 185 (Old No 100), Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai 600010, have been selected and recommended
by the Board of Directors for appointment as the Auditors of the Company for a period of three consecutive years
commencing from the conclusion of the ensuing 37th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 40th Annual
General Meeting to be held during the year 2028.

3. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) inter-alia vide its General Circulars No. General Circular No. 09/2024,

dated September 19, 2024 read with Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020, General Circular
No. 02/2022 dated 05.05.2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 and General Circular No. 09/
2023 dated 25.09.2023 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars‘) has permitted the holding of the annual general
meeting through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or through other audio-visual means (“OAVM”), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. Hence, the Annual General Meeting (“Meeting” or “AGM”) of the
Company will be held through VC/OAVM on Thursday, 14th August, 2025 at 12.30 P.M. (IST). Therefore, Members
can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.
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Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA circulars through VC or OAVM, the requirement of physical
attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, Pursuant to the MCA Circulars, the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. Since the AGM will be held through
VC/OAVM, the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/
OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the commencement
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction
on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) the Secret arial Standard on General Meet ings (SS-
2) issued by the ICSI and the relevant MCA circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered
into an agreementwith National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means,
as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue
voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company
at www.peerlessfinance.in. Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The deemed venue for the 37th AGM will be the Registered Office of the Company at Peerless Bhavan, 3, Esplanade
East, Kolkata 700069.

The helpline number of the Company regarding any query / assistance for participation in the AGM through VC/
OAVM is 033-22483247.

In line with the aforesaid Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars the Notice of AGM along with Annual
Report 2024-25 will be sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered
with the Company/Depositories. Member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 has been uploaded
on the website of the Company at www.peerlessfinance.in.

Any change of address of the members of the Company may be intimated to the Registered Office of the Company
or to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, M/s. CB MANAGEMENT SERVICES (P) LTD.,
Rasoi Court, 5th floor, 20, Sir R N Mukherjee Road, KOLKATA - 700001, TELEPHONE: 033-6906 6200, E-
MAIL: rta@cbmsl.com, quoting their Folio Number (s) with a self-attested copy of address proof, i.e. Voter Identity
Card, Electric/ Telephone (BSNL) Bill or Driving License or Passport on or before 7th day of August, 2025. In
case shares are held in dematerialized form, the information regarding change of address and bank particulars should
be given to their respective Depository Participant.

Members are requested to register/update their email ID by following the steps mentioned below to receive Notice,
Annual Report and other related documents, if any, through email.

Process for those members whose email id’s are not registered:

(i) Formembersholdingsharesin Physical mode - please provide necessary detailslike Folio No., Name of shareholder
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by email to the Company at pfs@peerlessfinance.in and /or to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA)
at rta@cbmsl.com.

(ii) Members holdingsharesin Demat mode can get their e-mail id registered by contacting their respective Depository
Participant.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the order of names will
be entitled to vote.

Members seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company  at
pfs@peerlessfinance.in at least 7 days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information
ready.

In terms of Section 72 of the Act, nomination facility is available to individual Members holding shares in the
physical mode. The Members, who are desirous of availing this facility, may kindly write to Company’s RTA for
nomination form by quoting their folio number.

As per the Notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India dated 10th September, 2018, every
holder of securities of an unlisted public company, who intends to transfer such securities on or after 2nd October,
2018, shall get such securities dematerialised before the transfer.

Consequent upon the said Notification, the Company’s equity shares have been admitted in NSDL. The ISIN of
the Equity shares of the Company is INEO21601013.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the scanned copies of Register of Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of contracts
or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act and all other documents referred
to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, the 8th day
of August, 2025 to Thursday, the 14th day of August, 2025 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of the Annual
General Meeting.

Voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their respective shareholding as on the cut-off date i.e. 7th
August, 2025 and a person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information
purposes only.

Members are requested to contact the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, Ms. Ranu Dey Talukdar,
Compliance Office, M/s. CB MANAGEMENT SERVICES (P) LTD. Rasoi Court, 5th floor 20, Sir R N Mukherjee
Road, KOLKATA - 700001, TELEPHONE: 033-6906 6200, E-MAIL.: rta@cbmsl.com, for reply to their queries/
redressal of complaints, if any, or contact Mr. Biswajit Das, Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the
Company.

The recorded transcript of the forthcoming AGM shall also be made available on the website of the Company
www.peerlessfinance.in as soon as possible after the meeting is over.

Additional information, as required under the provisions of Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, in respect of the directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the AGM, is furnished as
annexure to the Notice. The Directors have furnished consent/ declaration for their appointment / re-appointment
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, asamended, Secretarial Standard-2 issued by ICSI and other applicable provisions
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment for the time being in force), the Company is pleased to provide
the members the facility to exercise their vote through remote e-voting in respect of the resolutions proposed to
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be passed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) by using the electronic voting facility provided by the
NSDL.

Duringthe remote e-voting period, the members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or dematerialized
form, as on the ‘cut-off’ date i.e. 7th August, 2025 may cast their vote electronically.

Oncethevote on aresolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Voting rights of the member shall be in proportion to their respective shareholding as on the cut-off date i.e. 7th
August, 2025.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not
be entitled to cast their votes again.

Any person who acquires the shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after the dispatch
of this Notice and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 7th August, 2025 may obtain the login ID and password
by sending a request at rta@cbmsl.com and should follow the instructions for e-voting as mentioned below for
FIRST TIME USER. In case of any queries, the shareholder may also contact the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

The Company has appointed Mr. Mohan Ram Goenka, failing whom Ms. Sneha Khaitan Jalan, both of MR &
Associates (ESTD 1996), Practicing Company Secretaries, to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-
voting process as well as the e-voting at the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the Annual General meeting, unblock and
count the total votes cast by the members and within a period not exceeding three days from the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting make a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman of the Company or any other person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign
the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report
shall be placed on the Company’s website www.peerlessfinance.in and on the website of NSDL.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions set out in the Notice shall be deemed to be passed
on the date of the AGM.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING
ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 10th August, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday,
13th August, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date
(cut-off date) i.e. 7th August, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-
off date, being 7th August, 2025.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method fore-Voting and joiningvirtual meetingfor Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL.

4.

For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/
evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification
code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and
click on login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Votingservices and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL.: https:/
[www.evoting.nsdl.cony/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page
of e-Votingsystemislaunched, click onthe icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

MSDL Mobile App is available on

‘AppSmre P Google Play
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Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user

Shareholders id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further

holding authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website

securities in www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your

demat existing my easi username & password.

rgggﬁ with 2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company.
On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider for castingyour vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system
of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration
option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Shareholders Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able
(holding to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository
securities in site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company
demat name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of
mode) login NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
through during the meeting.

their

depository

participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holdingsecurities Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk
in demat mode with NSDL by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk
in demat mode with CDSL by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at

toll free no. 1800-21-09911
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) ForMemberswho hold sharesindemat | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12%#*%%* then
your user ID is IN3QQ##* 24k

b) ForMemberswho hold sharesindemat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
account with CDSL.

For example if your Beneficiary [D is 12#### sttt then your user

c) ForMembers holdingsharesin Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

Form. For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user
ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your
vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account
or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.

(ii) Ifyouremail IDisnotregistered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
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a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast vour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting
your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM?” link placed
under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer CS Mohan Ram Goenka by
e-mail to goenkamohan@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders
(i.e. otherthan individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their
login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?”
or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022
-4886 7000 or send arequest to Mr. Pritam Dutta, Assistant Manager at pritamd@nsdl.com/ evoting@nsdl.com
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

3.

4.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to pfs@peerlessfinance.in.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to pfs@peerlessfinance.in. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at
step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.
Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting
on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system.
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company
name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM
will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid
last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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5. Shareholderswhowould like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 2 days advance mentioning
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at pfs@peerlessfinance.in. The same
will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Shareholderswhowould like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting may pre-register themselves
by sending a request from their registered e-mail address mentioning their names, DP ID and Client ID/folio number,
PAN and mobile number at pfs@peerlessfinance.in between 8th August 2025, 10 a.m. (IST) and 12th August,
2025, 5 p.m. (IST). Only those Shareholders who have pre-registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers
depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

7. Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), given hereunder sets out
all material facts relating to the special business mentioned at Item Nos. 3 of the accompanying Notice dated
July 1, 2025.

Item 4 & 5

On recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors, the Board of Directors at the meeting
held on 18th September, 2024, has appointed Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741), as an Additional Director of the
company under Section 161(1) read together with Sections 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the “Act”)
with effect from 7th October, 2024, subject to approval of shareholders at the general meeting.

Based on his experience, expertise, and contribution to the Company, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Partha Bose (DIN:
10745741) by redesignating and regularizing him as Whole-Time Director of the Company for a period of 1 (one) year
commencing from 7th October, 2024, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

Mr. Partha Bose (DIN : 10745741) has submitted requisite disclosure of interest and declarations as required under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. His qualification and experience are commensurate with the size and business
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the appointment of Mr. Bose is appropriate and in the best interest
of the Company.

The Remuneration of WTD & CFO has been fixed within the ceiling specified in Section II, Part Il of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
subject to fulfilment of certain conditions, in the event of no profit or inadequacy of profit.

The remuneration of WTD & CFO, as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and fixed by
the Board, subject to approval of shareholders, is given below:

a) Salary:
(i) Base Salary : Rs.50,000/- per month
(i) House Rent Allowance : Rs.25,000/- per month.
b) Perquisites & Allowances:

Within the overall ceiling of 25% of Base Salary in a financial year Mr. Partha Bose shall be entitled to the
following perquisites and allowances.

(i) Leave Travel Assistance / expenses for self and family, such as, travel fare, lodging, boarding, conveyance
and other expenses incurred as per the Rules of the Company as may be modified from time to time.

(i) Medical expenses incurred including hospital, nursing home and surgical charges in respect of self and family
as covered under Group Medical Insurance Policy as per the Staff Rules of the Company as may be modified
from time to time.
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‘Family’ for the purpose of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall mean the spouse, dependent children and dependent
parents as per the Staff Rules of the Company, as may be modified from time to time.

(iii) Provision foruse of computer/laptop and necessary expenses incurred thereon and a mobile telephone including
payment for local calls and long distance official calls.

(iv) Entertainment Expenses.

For the purpose of calculation of above ceiling, following perquisites shall not be included in the
computation :-

(v) Company’s contribution to Gratuity Funds as per rules of the Company.

(vi) Leave with full pay and encashment of leave as per the Rules of the Company, as may be modified from
time to time.

For the purpose of Gratuity and other like benefits, if any, such as leave balance due, the service of the
Wholetime Director & CFO will be considered from the date of his joining the Company as WTD & CFO.

(c) AnnualIncentive/Performance Pay: As may be determined, if any, by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
of Directors and approved by the Board from time to time.

The above remuneration shall be subject to limits and conditions prescribed from time to time under Section 197
read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 as may for the time being, be in force, or otherwise as may
be permissible at law.”

All other terms and conditions of the said appointment shall as per the rules of the company.”

The above remuneration (including perquisites) shall be paid to Mr. Bose as the minimum remuneration in the
event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year.

The following additional detailed information as per Section — II of Schedule V is as follows:

I. General Information:

(@) Nature of industry Non-Banking Financial Company

(b) Date or expected date Business commenced in 1988, since the Company
commencement of is of into financial service sector, hence there is no
commercial production. date of commercial production

(c) In case of new companies, Not applicable

expected date of commenc-
ement of activities as per
project approved by financial
institutions appearing in the

prospectus.
(d) Financial performance based FY FY FY FY
on given indicators. 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Gross Revenue : 71,630.83 |1,09,444.30 | 1,10,148.63 | 36,482.22
(Rs in thousand)
Profit/(Loss) after 27,125.16 | 22,268.10 | (1,03,329.32) | 6,909.90
Tax (Rs. in
thousand)
Earnings per 0.73 0.59 (2.77) 0.19
Share: (Rs.)
(e) Foreign investments or The Company has neither made any foreign investments nor entered into
collaborations, if any any foreign collaborations.
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II. Information about the appointee:

(a) Background details Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741) is a science graduate and a Cost
& Management Accountant (CMA). He is an Accounts Professional
with 30 years of work experience. He had been working in the
Company since 1994. Since January 2016, he had been working
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

(b)  Past remuneration The remuneration drawn by Mr. Bose during the past two years
are as follows:
Year Amount
2021-22 Rs.7.13 Lacs
2022-23 Rs. 8.38 Lacs
2023-24 Rs. 8.89 Lacs
(c)  Recognition or awards —

d) Job profile and his suitability As the Wholetime Director & CFO of the Company and devotes
whole time attention to the management of the affairs of the
Company and exercises powers under the supervision and
superintendence of the Board of the Company. In the opinion of
the Board, the appointment of Mr. Bose is appropriate and in the
best interest of the Company.

—_

(e} Remuneration proposed It is proposed to pay consolidated remuneration to Mr. Bose up
to Rs.11.50 Lakh only per annum by way of salary, perquisite etc.

(ff)  Comparative remuneration profile Considering the responsibility shouldered by Mr. Bose of the
with respect to industry, size of the enhanced business activities of the Company, the proposed
Company, profile of the position remuneration is commensurate with Industry standards and Board

and person level positions held in similar sized and similarly positioned businesses.

(@ Pecuniary relationship directly or Does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company except
indirectly with the Company, or remuneration drawn as the Wholetime Director & CFO. Further,
relationship with the managerial heholds 10 equity shares of Rs.10 each in the capital of the Company.

personnel, if any.

III. Other information:

a)  Reasonsoflossorinadequate profits In pursuance of the RBI Directions to the Holding Company, not
to hold two NBFC-ICC licences / CoR in the group, the Company
had to close its lending business since 31 October 2023 and to sale
its entire loan book to other NBFCs at the end of March, 2024
at a discounted value. Hence incurred a loss in the books of the

Company.
(b) Stepstaken orproposedtobetaken Following steps taken by the Company for improvement:
for improvement (i)  Optimization of income from treasury.

(i) Minimizingadministrative expenses.

(c) Expected increase in productivity Company hopes to increase its treasury operations business.
and profits in measurable terms

The draft Agreement to be entered into by and between the Company and Mr. Bose is open for inspection by the
members at the AGM and such documents will also be available for inspection in physical or in electronic form at
the registered office of the Company from 11:30 a.m. to 1:30 p.m. on all working days, that is, from Monday to
Friday upto the date of the Annual General Meeting.
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Except, Mr. Partha Bose, no Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are interested or concerned in the
resolution relating to the appointment of Mr. Partha Bose.

The Board of Directors recommends the special resolution as set out at Item no.4 of the notice for approval of

the Members.

Information pursuant to para 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS- 2) regarding
Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment.

Mr. Partha Bose

Mr. Supriyo Sinha

(DIN:10745741)

(DIN: 07666744)

Age

59 Years

48 years

Qualifications

Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741) is a
science graduate and a Cost & Management
Accountant (CMA)

Mr. Supriyo Sinha (DIN: 07666744) is a
Graduate from the Harvard Business School,
a Gold Medalist from Indian Institute of
Management, Kolkata, a 2nd Rank holder
in Mechanical Engineering from IIT,
Kharagpur and 1st Rank holder in West
Bengal Higher Secondary Examination.

Experience

31 Years

22 years

Terms and
conditions of
appointmentor re-
appointment

(i) Tenure of this appointment shall be one
year with effect from October 7, 2024.

(i) The Wholetime Director & CFO of the
Companyisinthe Wholetime employment
of the Company and shall not be liable
to retire by rotation and will not be
permitted to undertake any other business,
work or public office, honorary or
remunerative, except with the written
permission of the Competent Authority
in each case.

(iii) The Wholetime Director & CFO shall be
entitled to such other privileges, allowance,
facilities and amenities in accordance
with the rules and regulations as may be
applicable to other employees of the
Company and as may be decided by the
Board, within the overall limits prescribed
under the Act.

(iv) The Wholetime Director & CFO will cease
to be Director on cessation of his
employment with the Company

(v) The appointment shall be governed by
Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule
V and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

(vi) The separation from this engagement

could be effected by either side giving
three months’ notice.

The appointment of Mr. Supriyo Sinha as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
whose period of office shall be liable to
determination by retirement of Directors by
rotation.
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Remuneration to be paid

As mentioned under Item 4 of this
Explanatory statement.

Directors’ Sittingfees and Profit related
commission, if any, declared from
time to time. However, Mr. Sinha has
voluntarily relinquished his right to
receive sitting fees for attending
meetings of the Board and Committee
w.e.f. 15/03/2023.

Last drawn remuneration

Rs. 8.89 lakh (FY 2023-24)

NIL (FY 2023-24)

Date of first appointment on the
Board

October 7, 2024

August 31, 2022

No. of share held 10 0
Relationship with Directors, Managers | Not related Not related
& KMP
Number of Board Meeting attended | 1 4
during FY 2022-23
Other Directorship None 1. The Peerless General Finance &
Investment Co. Ltd.
2. Peerless Hospitex Hospital and
Research Center Ltd.
3. Peerless Hotels Ltd.
4. Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Ltd.,
5. Bengal Peerless Housing
Development Co. Ltd.
Chairman/Member ofthe Committees | None * Member of Nomination &

of Boards of other companies

Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of Peerless
Hotels Ltd.

¢ Member of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of Kaizen Hotels
& Resorts Ltd.

¢ Member of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of
Peerless Hospitex Hospital &
Research Center Ltd.

15




PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Simplifinance

* Member of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of
Bengal Peerless Housing
Development Co. Ltd.

e Member of IT Strategy
Committee of The Peerless
General Finance &
Investment Co. Ltd

Kolkata,
Dated : 1st July, 2025

Registered Office:
Peerless Bhavan,

3, Esplanade East,
Kolkata 700069

By Order of the Board
For Peerless Financial Services Limited

Biswajit Das

Company Secretary
Membership No. A23043
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BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors present the Thirty-seventh Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial Performance
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarised below:

(Rupees in Thousand)

PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Revenue from Operations 18008.69 98476.69
Other Income 18473.53 11671.93
Gross Revenue 36482.22 110148.63
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Exceptional items and Tax Expense 14474.25 (94806.21)
Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment (Provision written back) 2864.43 5429.78
Profit/loss before Tax 11609.82 (100235.99)
Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 4699.92 (3093.33)
Profit /loss for the year (1) 6909.90 (103329.32)
Other Comprehensive Income (2) (747.08) 544.25
Total Comprehensive Income (1+2) 6162.82 (102785.07)
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years (72780.73) 30004.34
Transfer to Special Reserves (1381.98) -
Balance carried forward (67999.89) (72780.73)

The state of the Company’s Affairs

Your Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI”) and categorised as an Investment and Credit Company (“ICC”), having Asset Size of about Rs.51.14 crore
as on 31st March, 2025. The Company has its Registered and Corporate Office in Kolkata. Your Company is a subsidiary
company of The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited (CIN: U66010WB1932PLC007490).

The Company was in the business of lending till 31st October, 2023 and offered various categories of retail loans to
individuals and business entities. Consequent upon RBI guidelines on multiple NBFCs in the same Group, the RBI vide
their letter dated 31/03/2023 advised the Holding Company to divest its entire stake in the Company. Thereafter, the
Company stopped its lending business and accordingly, it was decided to surrender the NBFC Certificate of Registration
(CoR) held by this Company. The Company sold /assigned its loan books to other NBFCs at the end of the last FY
2023-24.

During the FY 2024-25, the Company did not have any customer-interface nor any borrowing. The Company is now
in the process of surrendering the Certificate of Registration (CoR) issued to it by RBI.

In order to opt out of financial activities for the purpose of being eligible to apply for surrendering the CoR, the Company,
during last 3 quarters of the FY 2024-25, has shifted its entire funds of about Rs. 47 crores to fixed deposits with Banks
to ensure its income from non-financial activities exceeded income from its financial activities, as required by Regulation.
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During the FY 2024-25, gross revenue earned by the Company was Rs.36,482.22 Thousand, a decrease of 66.88 %
over Rs. 1,10,148.63 Thousand in 2023-24. The fall in gross revenue by Rs. 73,666.42 Thousand in FY 2024-25 was
due to shifting of funds from financial assets to non-financial assets.

The Company earned Profit before Tax (PBT) of Rs.11,609.82 Thousand and Profit after Tax of Rs. 6,909.90 Thousand
during the FY 2024-25, compared to Loss before tax of Rs.1,00,235.99 Thousand during the previous financial year
2023-24, which was mainly due to Rs. 1,41,686 Thousand booked as loss on sale of loan book and Rs. 34,265 Thousand
worth of loans written off during the previous FY 2023-24.

Material Changes Affecting the Financial Position of the Company

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end
of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

Dividend
The Directors of the Company do not recommend any dividend for the FY 2024-25 due to inadequacy of profit.
Amounts Transferred to Reserves

Due to Profit earned during the FY 2024-25, an amount of Rs.1381.98 thousand has been transferred to Special Reserve
created under Section 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934.

Non-Acceptance of Public Deposit

The Company has neither accepted, held nor renewed any public deposits, as defined under section 45-I(bb) of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and Section 2(31) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2(1)(c) of the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year FY 2024-25.

Variation in Net Worth

The Company’s Net Worth as at the close of the financial year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs.5,09,963.97 Thousand,
compared to the net worth of Rs. 5,03,801.15 Thousand as at the close of the previous financial year ended March
31, 2024.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return as on March
31, 2024 is available on the website of the Company at https://peerlessfinancel-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/
biswajit das peerlessfinance in/EROrFZXWDXLxFpYjM p4RXEUBEfAZhXIIxVtz0T 0CM7mg?e=8Gkwvh.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186

Your Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India and categorized
as an Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC). Accordingly, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act pertaining
to granting of loans to any persons or bodies corporate, giving of guarantees or providing security in connection with
loans to any other bodies corporate or persons, and acquiring by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities
of any other body corporate, do not apply to the Company.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

The Company has not entered into any material contract/transactions during the FY 2024-25 with Related Parties which
are not in its ordinary course of business or not on an arm’s length basis, and which require disclosure in this Report
in terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act.

However, for the purpose of good governance practice, the contracts / arrangements / transactions which took place
in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis with the related parties are disclosed in Form No. AOC-
2 and marked as Annexure ‘A’. Further, details of Related Party Transactions, as required by Indian Accounting Standard
24 on “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Compliance with Non-Banking Financial Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions

The Company is registered with the RBI as a Non-Banking Financial Company. It is a Non-Deposit taking, Investment
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and Credit Company (NBFC-ND-ICC). The Company has complied with and continues to comply with the provisions
of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and applicable rules, circulars, regulations and directions issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”).

The Company has completed the selling of its entire loan book on 28th March, 2024 and informed RBI about the
cessation of its lending business. The Company is in the process on surrendering the NBFC-ICC Certificate of Registration
(CoR). During the FY 2024-25, the Company did not have any customer interface nor any borrowing. Necessary
compliances as required for a lending company do not apply to the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
(i) Conservation of Energy:

The Company, being a financial company, requires nominal consumption of energy. However, necessary steps to
reduce consumption of energy is taken by the Company. LED lights have been retrofitted in the office premises
to conserve electricity. Air Conditioners’ temperature is maintained at the optimum ambient temperature resulting
into savings of energy.

(ii) Technology Absorption:

The Company, being a NBFC and not being engaged in any industrial or manufacturing activities, has no particulars
to report regarding technology absorption.

(iii) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
There was no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review.
Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates

No company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary, joint venture or associate of your Company during the year
under review.

Risk Management

Risk management framework, as set up by the Board, continues to monitor the internal and external risks arising out
of changes in market scenario, regulatory changes etc. The Risk Management Framework enables the management to
have a comprehensive view of identified key risk areas based on their probability and impact. These are Market Risk,
Process risk, People risk, Outsourcing risk, Technology risk, Business Continuity, Cyber Security and Reputation Risk.
The Company follows various processes for Enterprise Risk Management which include Internal Controls Management
which is done on an ongoing basis and Process Audit is also conducted on a periodic basis. There is continued focus
on operational resilience and mitigation of these risks.

Internal Control

The Company has adopted several policies and procedures for the purpose of internal control. The internal control
system is supported by proper assessment by the Process Audit of the adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal
controls, including its systems, processes and compliances with regulations and procedures. Process Audit Reports are
discussed with the Management and are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board, which also reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of the internal controls in the Company. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate
with its size and the nature of its business.

Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements

Internal Financial Control on financial reporting system of the Company has been designed to ensure an accurate and
fair reflection of financial transactions of the company. It provides reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company. The Process Flows, Risk Control Matrix and Testing Results and Reports ensures adequacy
of Internal Financial Control on Financial Reporting. The Company has, in material respect, adequate internal financial
control over financial reporting and such controls are operating effectively.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Directors :
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(i) The following changes in the Board of Directors took place during the FY 2024-25:

(@) Mr. Abhishek Tantia (DIN: 07651661) stepped down from the position of Managing Director & CEO of the
Company with effect from 12th April, 2024. He is, however, continuing to be a Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company with effect from that date.

(b) Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741) has been appointed as a Wholetime Director & Chief Financial Officer with
effect from 7th October, 2024 for a period of 1 year.

(c) In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Supriyo Sinha (DIN: 07666744),
Director, will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, he offers himself
for re-appointment.

(d) During the year, Shri Dipankar Chatterjee, Independent Director, retired on 06.05.2024, having completed his
tenure in the company.

(ii) Independent Directors :

During the year under review, Mr. Deepak Mukerjee (DIN: 00046690) and Mr. Deepankar Bose (DIN: 09450920)
were the Independent Directors of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all Independent Directors have submitted to the Company
necessary declarations to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149
(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience
(including proficiency) and expertise and are of the highest standards of integrity. In terms of Section 150 of the
Act read with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the names of the Independent
Directors of the Company have been registered with the data bank of Independent Directors created and maintained
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”).

A meeting of Independent Directors was held on 29/05/2024 during the FY 2024-25. All the Independent Directors
of the Company were present at such meeting.

(iii) Key Managerial Personnel:

As per the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, Mr. Partha Bose (DIN: 10745741), Wholetime Director & Chief
Financial Officer, and Biswajit Das, Company Secretary, were the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the
Company during the FY 2024-25.

Mr. Abhishek Tantia (DIN: 07651661) stepped down from the office of Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 12th April,
2024, though he is continuing as a Non-executive Director of the Company. Hence, he is not a KMP w.e.f. 12th
April, 2024.

Apart from the changes mentioned above, no other change of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel took place during
the financial year under review.

Evaluation of the Board, Committees of the Board, Individual Directors and the Chairman

The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Board Committees and
of the individual Directors, in pursuance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors was
assisted by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) for carrying out the annual evaluation. The
performance evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs from all the Directors and Members of the respective
Committees, as the case may be.

The criteria for evaluation of the Board as a whole, inter alia, covered parameters such as the Structure of the Board,
Functions of the Board and Meetings of the Board. The criteria for evaluation of Individual Directors covered parameters
such as knowledge and competency, fulfillment of functions, ability to function as a team, etc. The criteria for evaluation
of the Board Committees covered areas related to structure of the committee, mandate and composition, effectiveness
of the committee, meetings and functions of the committee, etc. The feedback of the Independent Directors on their
review of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and of the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman
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of the Company and the assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company,
the Management and the Board were taken into consideration.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have adopted a Nomination
and Remuneration Policy on Diversity of the Board, Director Attributes and Remuneration Policy.

Nomination & Remuneration Policy covers appointment / removal and remuneration for directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees and lays down criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and other matters, as formulated in Section 178 of the Act.

The salient features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy are given below:
Objectives

* Tolay down criteria and terms & conditions with regard to identifying persons qualified to become Directors (Executive
and Non-Executive) and to hold Senior Management and Key Managerial positions.

* To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size, financial position, trends and practices prevailing in peer
companies and in the industry as a whole.

* To provide them rewards linked directly to their efforts, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the
Company’s operations.

* To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons
commensurate with the requirements of the Company.

* To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors.
Applicability

The Policy is applicable to:

* Directors (both, Executive and Non-Executive)

* Key Managerial Personnel

* Senior Management Personnel

“Senior Management” for the purpose of this Policy means personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors, comprising all members of management one level below the executive
directors, including the functional heads.

General

This Policy is divided in three parts: Part — A covers matters to be dealt with and recommended by the Committee
to the Board, Part — B covers nomination, appointment and removal, and Part-C covers remuneration, perquisites etc.

A copy of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy is posted on the website of the Company at https://peerlessfinance.in/
Policies-Code-of-Conducts.

Corporate governance

The Company makes efforts to maintain high standards of Corporate Governance by adopting best practices and through
transparency in business processes, disclosures and accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all
stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors and the society at large.

Being part of the Peerless Group, the Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is founded upon a legacy of
fair and transparent governance practices.

The Company has adopted a Whistleblower Policy and Vigil Mechanism, a Fair Practices Code, a Policy against Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace, a Code of Conduct for Independent Directors, all of which have been
implemented in the Company as well as posted on the website of the Company.
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Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

Sl. | Name of Director Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Nature of change Effective date
No. | (M/s.) Non-Executive/ Chairman/
Promoter/ nominee/
Independent)
1 ABHISHEK TANTIA Executive Director Change of Designation 12/04/2024
(DIN: 07651661) to Non-Executive
Director
2 | DIPANKAR CHATTERJI Independent Director Retired 06/05/2024
(DIN: 00031256)
3 PARTHA BOSE Wholetime Director & CFO Appointed as Wholetime
(DIN: 10745741) Director & CFO 07/10/2024

There is no relationship amongst the directors inter-se.
I) Committees of the Board and their composition

(i) In order to perform various functions in a focused manner, the board has constituted the following Board
Committees:

1. Audit Committee,

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

3. Share Transfer & Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
4. Credit & Investment Committee.

Composition:

1. The Audit Committee comprises two Independent Directors and two Non-executive Director, namely, Mr.
Deepankar Bose (DIN: 09450920), Independent Director, as Chairman, Mr. Deepak Mukerjee (DIN: 00046690),
Independent Director, Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty (DIN: 00173745), Non-executive Director and Mr. Abhishek Tantia
(DIN: 07651661), Non-Executive Director, as Members.

2. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) comprises Mr. Deepankar Bose (DIN: 09450920),
Independent Director, as Chairman, Mr. Deepak Mukerjee (DIN: 00046690), Independent Director, and Mr. Asoke
Kumar Mukhuty (DIN: 00173745), Non-Executive Director, as Members.

3. The Share Transfer & Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of three Non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Deepankar Bose (DIN: 09450920), Independent Director, as Chairman, and Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty (DIN:
00173745), Non-Executive Director and Mr. Abhishek Tantia (DIN: 07651661), Non-Executive Director, as Members.

4. The Credit & Investment Committee comprises Mr. Deepak Mukerjee (DIN: 00046690), Chairman, Mr.
Deepankar Bose (DIN: 09450920), Independent Director, Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty (DIN: 00173745), Non-
executive Director, and Mr. Abhishek Tantia (DIN: 07651661), Non-Executive Director, as Members.

(II) The summarized terms of reference of the Board Committees and the details of meetings held by
the said Committees during the FY 2024-25 are given below:

1. Audit Committee:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013, which include detailed review of financial statements prior to consideration by the Board of Directors,
approval of annual internal audit plan, review of internal and other audit reports, review of financial reporting system,
internal financial control with reference to financial reporting and risk management system. The Audit Committee
makes recommendation for appointment of statutory and internal auditors.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the financial year 2024-25 on 26/04/2024, 29/05/2024, 18/09/2024
and 10/01/2024 with the attendance of the following Members :

Sl. | Name of Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ | Number of Meetings | No. of
No. | Director Committee Non-Executive/ Chairman/ | of the Committee shares held
since Promoter nominee/ in the
Independent) Held Attended | NBFC
1. | Mr. Deepankar 15/05/2024 Independent Director, 3 3 0
Bose Chairman of Audit
(DIN: 09450920) Committee w.e.f.
15/05/2024
2. | Mr. Deepak 17/12/2016 Independent Director 4 4 0
Mukerjee & Chairman of the
(DIN: 00046690) Board, Member of
Audit Committee
3 | Mr. Asoke Kumar 28/01/2013 Non-Executive Director, 4 4 1451
Mukhuty Member of Audit
(DIN: 00173745) Committee
4 | Mr. Abhishek Tantia| 18/09/2024 Non-Executive Director, 1 1 10
(DIN: 07651661) Member of Audit Committeg
1 | Mr. Dipankar 28/01/2013 Independent Director, 1 1 0
Chatterji Chairman of Audit
(DIN: 00031256), Committee
[upto 05/05/2024] (Retired w.e.f. 06/05/2024)

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the FY 2024-25 were accepted by the Board.
The Chairman of Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 26th July, 2024.

2.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter alia, include the following:

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

To specify the manner by which effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its committees and individual
Directors will be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency, and review its implementation and compliance.

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board Nomination & Remuneration policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

To oversee the framing, review and implementation of Compensation Policy of the company duly approved by
the board, ensuring that all statutory mandates and the rules and directions issued in this regard are fully complied
with.

To work in close coordination with Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the company to achieve effective
alignment between compensation and risks.

To ensure that compensation levels are compatible with the need to retain earnings of the company and the need
to maintain adequate capital based on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).

To comply with ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/existing directors and ensure that there is no conflict of interest
in appointment of directors on the Board of the company, KMPs and senior management.
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* To take such other actions as the NRC may deem fit for the betterment of employees or as may be recommended
/ mandated by the regulatory authorities from time to time.

The NRC held two meetings on 29/05/2024 and 18/09/2024 with the attendance of the following Members:

Sl. | Name of Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ | Number of Meetings | No. of
No. | Director Committee Non-Executive/ Chairman/ | of the Committee shares held
since Promoter nominee/ in the
Independent) Held Attended | NBFC
1. Mr. Deepankar 15/05/2024 Independent Director, 2 2 0
Bose Chairman of of NRC
(DIN: 09450920) w.e.f. 15/05/2024
2. Mr. Deepak 17/12/2016 Independent Director 2 2 0
Mukerjee & Chairman of the
(DIN: 00046690) Board, Member of NRC
3 Mr. Asoke Kumar 06/05/2014 Non-Executive Director, 2 2 1451
Mukhuty Member of NRC
(DIN: 00173745)

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting 26th July, 2024.

3. Share Transfer & Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The terms of reference of Share Transfer & Stakeholders Relationship Committee include considering grievances,
if any, of the shareholders of the Company. The scope of work of the Committee also covers consideration, approval
and registration of share transmission and issue of duplicate or renewed share certificates.

There was no occasion to hold any meeting by the Committee during the FY 2024-25.

Details of members of the Committee are given below:

Sl. | Name of Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ | Number of Meetings | No. of
No. | Director Committee Non-Executive/ Chairman/ | of the Committee shares held
since Promoter nominee/ in the
Independent) Held Attended | NBFC
1. Mr. Deepankar 15/03/2023 Independent Director, 0 0 0
Bose Chairman of the
(DIN: 09450920) Committee
2. Mr. Asoke Kumar 06/05/2014 Non-Executive Director, 0 0 1451
Mukhuty Member of the Committee
(DIN: 00173745)
3 Mr.Abhishek Tantia| 31/08/2022 Non-Executive Director, 0 0 10
(DIN: 07651661) Member of the Committee

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 26th July, 2024.

4. Credit & Investment Committee

The Credit & Investment Committee (CIC) sanctions credit facilities to customers, and also approves proposals for
investment/disinvestment of the Company’s surplus funds in different investment instruments/ avenues on day-to-
day basis, under the powers delegated to it by the Board.
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Details of members of the Committee are given below:

Sl. | Name of Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ | Number of Meetings | No. of
No. | Director Committee Non-Executive/ Chairman/ | of the Committee shares held
since Promoter nominee/ in the
Independent) Held Attended | NBFC
1. Mr. Deepak 01/04/2023 Independent Director & 0 0 0
Mukerjee Chairman of the Board,
(DIN: 00046690) Member of the Committee
2. Mr. Deepankar 31/08/2022 Independent Director, 0 0 0
Bose Chairman of the
(DIN: 09450920) Committee
3 Mr. Asoke Kumar 12/12/2013 Non-Executive Director, 0 0 1451
Mukhuty Member of the Committee
(DIN: 00173745)
4 Mr.Abhishek Tantia| 17/01/2017 Non-Executive Director, 0 0 10
(DIN: 07651661), Member of the Committee

General Body Meetings

Details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings.

Sl. Type of Meeting Date and Special resolutions passed
No. (Annual/ Extra- Ordinary) Place
1 36th Annual General 26/07/2024 | —

Meeting Kolkata

Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

There was no case of any default in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, nor with respect to
compliance with accounting and secretarial standards.

Details of penalties and strictures

There was no case of any penalties or stricture imposed by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority.
Breach of covenant

There was no instance of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

There was no case of divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning with respect to :

(a) the additional provisioning requirements assessed by RBI exceeding 5 percent of the reported profits before tax and
impairment loss on financial instruments for the reference period, or

(b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceeding 5 per cent of the reported Gross NPAs for the reference
period ended 31/03/2025.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014
read with the RBI Direction No. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref.No.DoS.CO. ARG/ SEC.01/ 08.91.001/ 2021-22 dated April 27,
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2021, M/s. S.N. Kulkarni & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.: 105441W), Statutory Auditors, were appointed
at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31/08/2022, for a period of three consecutive years from
the conclusion of the 34thAGM. Their term will expire at the conclusion of the ensuing 37th AGM to be held in this
calendar year 2025.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014
read with the RBI Direction No. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref. No.DoS.CO. ARG/ SEC.01/ 08.91.001/ 2021-22 dated April 27,
2021 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies act, 2013 and any other law for the time being in force,
and subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and such approval,
as may be required, M/s. M K Dandeker & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.: 0006795/S000103) of
2nd Floor, New No 185 (Old No 100), Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai 600010, have been selected and
recommended by the Board of Directors for appointment as the Auditors of the Company for a period of three consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of the ensuing 37th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 40th
Annual General Meeting to be held during the year 2028.

M/s. M K Dandeker & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.: 0006795/S000103), being eligible, offer
themselves for appointment as the Auditors of the Company. They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that
their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified from
being appointed as the Auditors of the Company.

Your Directors recommend the appointment of M/s. M K Dandeker & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn.
No.: 0006795/5000103), as the Auditors of your Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Explanation to Auditors’ Observations

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by the Statutory Auditors in their Report for the FY 2024-
25 that needs to be explained or responded to.

Particulars of Employees

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
is made in Annexure ‘B’ to the Board’s Report.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013

Pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013, the Company has put in place a Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace. An Internal
Complaints Committee has also been set up by the Board to redress complaints, if any.

No complaint on sexual harassment has been made by any person during the year under review.
Necessary awareness programmes are held to spread awareness among the employees periodically.
Fraud Reporting

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (ca) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2015, no fraud was reported
by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Accounting Standard Followed

The Annual Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind-AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, read with Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company also follows RBI Directions. The Financial Statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder. Accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of the Financial Statements have been consistently followed in the FY 2024-25.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors have devised proper systems and procedures for the business and affairs of the Company and a number
of policies have been implemented to safeguard the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and to
maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholders’ value.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained, hereby confirm that -

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the
end of the financial year 2024-25 and of the profit & loss of the Company for that period;

c) thedirectors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial Standards

Your Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and as specified in section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Significant / material Orders passed by the Regulators

No significant material order was passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the year under review, impacting
the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil Mechanism

The Whistleblower Policy has been framed with a view to provide a mechanism for all the stakeholders to approach
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, as and when a misconduct is found in relation to the Company. This policy
has been made to encourage the employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to raise concerns or make
disclosures, when they become aware of any actual or potential violation of any Code, policies or law that is not reflective
of the values and principles of the Organization. The said policy has been posted on the website of the Company.

General Disclosures
Your Directors further state and confirm the following in respect of the FY 2024-25:

1. On 28/03/2024, the Company has sold its entire loan portfolio and changed its nature of business from ‘Loan
Company’ to ‘Investment Company’. However, it still remains as a NBFC-Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-
ICC).

2. The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for providing details about CSR Policy and implementation and initiative
taken thereon do not apply to the Company.

3. Your Company did not issue equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

Your Company did not issue any shares (including ESOP and sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company
under any scheme.

5. Disclosure regarding receiving of any remuneration or commission by the Managing Director from its holding/subsidiary
company is not required, since Managing Director & CEO of the Company did not hold any such position.
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6. There was no other corporate action, such as buy- back of securities, payment of dividend declared, mergers and

7.

10.

de-mergers, delisting, split and issue of any other securities etc. announced by the Company during the year under
review, failure to implement which is required to be disclosed.

Since the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company, the maintenance of cost records as specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required by the Company;
accordingly, such accounts and records are not made and maintained by the Company.

No application has been filed for corporate insolvency resolution process against your Company by any financial
creditor or operational creditor or your Company under Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 before the National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).

The Company made an application before the NCLT, Mumbai against Rasoya Proteins Ltd.(“RPL”), a borrower
of the Company, as per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. As on 31/03/2025, RPL was
in the process of liquidation.

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

The Company has not taken any loan from any Bank or Financial Institution, hence, the requirement for ‘Disclosure’
about the difference between the amounts of the valuation executed at the time of onetime settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof does not
apply to the Company.
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Kolkata

Date : 01 July, 2025 For and on behalf of the Board
Registered office :

"PEERLESS BHAVAN" Deepak Mukerjee
3, Esplanade East Chairman
Kolkata - 700 069 (DIN : 00046690)
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ANNEXURE “A”

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NIL
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions N.A.
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions N.A.
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any N.A.
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions N.A.
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board N.A.
(@) Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
(h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under

first proviso to section 188 N.A.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(i)

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | The Peerless General Finance & Investment
Co. Ltd. (Holding Company)
(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service Received
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Payment of Rent for PFS office premises
transactions including the value, if any: Rs.10,54,920/- (incl GST)
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board/Audit Committee,
if any
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
(i)
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | The Peerless General Finance & Investment
Co. Ltd. (Holding Company)
(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service received
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Reimbursement of Expenses
transactions including the value, if any: Rs.2,30,010 (incl GST)
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board/Audit Committee,
if any
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
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(iii)

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | The Peerless General Finance & Investment
Co. Ltd. (Holding Company)
(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service received
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Payment of advisory fees Rs.1,69,958- (incl. GST)
transactions including the value, if any: including outstanding payment of liability for expenses
of Rs.50,541/- (Incl GST)
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board/Audit Committee,
if any
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
(iv)
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | The Peerless General Finance & Investment
Co. Ltd. (Holding Company)
(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service received
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Receipt for sale of assets Rs.80,33,651/- (incl. GST)
transactions including the value, if any: including outstanding receivable as on 31.03.2025 of
Rs.78,87,247/- (Incl GST)
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
() Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
(v)
(@) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | Peerless Securities Ltd. (a subsidiary of the
holding company)
(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service received
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | ()1 04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Payment of Demat Maintenance Charges
transactions including the value, if any: Rs.3,220/-(incl GST)
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
() Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
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(vi)

(@) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | Bengal Peerless Housing Development
Company Ltd (an Associate Company of the
Holding Company)
(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Other support services for sale of flat
() Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | RS.1,97,178/- (incl GST) payable as outstanding
transactions including the value, if any: liability
(e Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
() Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
(vii)
(@) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | Peerless Hotels Lid. (A Subsidiary of the Holding
Company)
(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service Received (at arm’s length price)
() Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Cost of food and room rent etc. Rs.20,030/- including
transactions including the value, if any: GST.
(e Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
() Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
(viii)
(@) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship | Kaizen Liesure and Holiday’s Limited Hotels
Ltd. (Associate Company)
(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Service Received (at arm’s length price)
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions | 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Travelling Expenses incurred for ticket booking
transactions including the value, if any: Rs.40,600/- including GST.
(e Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
Kolkata
Date :1st July, 2025 For and on behalf of the Board
Registered office :
"PEERLESS BHAVAN" Deepak Mukerjee
3, Esplanade East Chairman
Kolkata - 700 069 (DIN : 00046690)
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE

“B”

Particulars of Employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
sub-rule (2) of rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

Name Age Designation Gross Nature Qualification | Experience| Date of Last
(Years) Remune- of (Years) Commence Employment
ration Employ- ment of /Post held
(Rs.) ment Employment
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
A |Top ten Employees in terms of remuneration
1. | Abhishek Tantia | 43 | MD & CEO 1,48,281/- | Contractual |ACA, MBA 18 02/01/2017 | Peerless Securities
(upto Ltd. / Chief
11.04.2024) Financial Officer
2. | Biswajit Das 56 | Company 20.67.800/- Non- B.Com (Hons), 30 18/06/2015 | The Peerless
Secretary & Y contractual |ACS. General Finance &
Chief Investment Co. Ltd./
Compliance Manager
Officer
3. | Partha Bose 59 | Chief 11,71,440/-| Contractual |B.Sc, ICWA 31 29/09/1994 | NIL
Financial
Officer
4. | Sumit Kumar 57 Manager- 5,28,600/- | Non- B.Com. 32 28/03/2022 | Hotel Purbanchal-
Roy Administration contractual Malda
5. | Sahnawaj 42 Manager 4.48,800/- | Non- B.Com. HDB Financial
i) 15 15/03/2021
Haider Credit contractual | Certificate in 03/ Services Limited
Banking credit
Analysis
6. | Saptarshi Roy 59 | Deputy _ | Non- B.Com. 32 20/12/2017 | BMA Wealth
Bardhan General 6’8([9)’13;4/ contractual |(Hons), MBA Creators Ltd./ VP
Manager- | 30.09.2024) (Finance)
Operations
7. | Shambhu Nath 46 Cluster Head- | 3,63,169/- | Non- B.SC (Hons), 19 07/02/2022 | HDB Financial
Pandey Business Loan (Upto contractual [MBA (IRM) Services Limited/
31.08.2024) Branch In-charge
8. | Siddhartha 44 Chief Man- 61.719/- Non- B.Com. (Hons), 21 27/07/2022 AUM Capital
Gupta ager-IT & (I’tho contractual |MCA Market Pvt. Ltd/ IT-
Admin 01.05.2024) Senior Manager
9.| Mani Sekhar | 46 | Sales Manager; g4 g75, | Nop. BA 15 | 10/01/2023 | HDB Financial
Roy Business Loan (Upto contractual Services Limited/
01.05.2024) Sales Manager
10| Somnath Roy | 47 | Branch-In- 71,542/~ | Non- B.Com. 18 | 30/09/2022 | Veritas Finance Put.
Charge (Upto contractual | (Hons) Ltd. / Senior Sales
31.05.2024) Manager

B. Employed throughout the financial year

and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs.1,02,00,000/- or more per annum

None

C. Employed for a part of the financial year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per month

None

19



PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Simplifinance

Notes: 1. Gross remuneration comprises salary and allowances, company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Monetary
value of perquisites etc. The employees are also entitled to Gratuity in accordance with the rules of the
Company.

2. The nature of employment is contractual in case of Managing Director & CEO. In respect of all the other
employees, the nature of employment is non-contractual, terminable by notice of either side and liable to
transfer to any division/holding/associate companies.

3. None of the employees together with their relatives hold shares of 2% or more of the paid-up share capital
of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Deepak Mukerjee
Kolkata Chairman
Date : 1st July, 2025 (DIN : 00046690)
Registered office :
"PEERLESS BHAVAN"

3, Esplanade East
Kolkata - 700 069
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Peerless Financial Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income) the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year
then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, its profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, as
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion

3. Information other than Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s Report, (including annexures thereto), but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

4. Responsibilities of the Management and Those charged with governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
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view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
5. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under the section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
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and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i) Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ii) The Company is considered not systemically important Non-deposit taking Non-banking Financial
Company as explained in note 35 of the financial statement and therefore the relevant provisions are
considered as not applicable to the company.

iii) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the requirements of Audit Trail as stated in
6(i) (vi) below

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B” to this report.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, is as
stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, asamended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — Refer Note 32(a) to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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Date :
Place :

iv.

vi.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement

The company has neither declared nor paid dividend during the year in accordance with the section
123 of the Act.

Based on our examinations, which included test checks, except for the instance mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software.

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application and database
level to log any direct data changes.

Pursuant to the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, which came into
effect from April 1, 2024, and in accordance with the requirements of Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, we report that, based on our audit procedures and the information
and explanations provided to us, the Company have not maintained and preserved the audit trail,
as per the applicable statutory requirements for record retention.

For S. N. Kulkarni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 105441W

G.V.Samant
(Partner)

29th May 2025 Membership No. 14802
Mumbai UDIN: 25014802BNUJPC6193
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial
statements of Peerless Financial Services Limited

Referred to in paragraph [6 (i)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date

According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief we state that:

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right to Use Assets.

According to information and explanations given to us, Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company are
being physically verified according to a phased programme of verification so as to verify all assets within a
period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its Property, Plant and Equipment. As informed, during the year no material discrepancies to the
extent reconciled with the records available in this respect were noticed on such verifications.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the record
of the Company, there are no immovable properties held by the Company. Accordingly, provision of clause
3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3(i)(d), of the Order is not applicable to the Company

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2024
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
and rules made thereunder

The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and consequently does not hold any physical inventories.
Accordingly, Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or
other financial institutions on the basis of security of loans (assets). Accordingly, Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the Company is a non deposit-taking non-banking financial
company (“NBFC”) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and as a part of its business activities is
engaged in the business of lending across various types of customers which include retail and SMEs.

During the year, in the ordinary course of its business, the Company has made investment in, granted loans and
advances in the nature of loans, secured and unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships and other
parties. With respect to such loans and advances:

a)

b)

The principal business of the Company is to give loans and hence reporting under clause (iii)(a) (A), (B) of
the Order is not applicable;

In our opinion, there were no loans and advances in the nature of loans; hence reporting under clause (iii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

As there were no loans and advances in the nature of loans, outstanding as at 31 March 2025, hence reporting
under clause (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

As there were no loans and advances in the nature of loans, outstanding as at 31 March 2025, hence reporting
under clause (iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The principal business of the Company is to give loans and hence reporting under clause (iii)(e) of the Order
is not applicable.
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f)  The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The Company has not advanced loans or made investments in or provided guaranty or security to parties covered
by section 185 of the Act and the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence
reporting under clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable.

(vi) According to information and explanations given to us the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance
of the cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales tax, Service tax / Goods and Service tax, duty of Customs, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it as per the available records as far as ascertained by us on our verification.

According to information and explanations given to us there were no undisputed amount payable in respect
of outstanding statutory dues as aforesaid as at 31st March 2025 for a period more than six months from
the date they become payable.

(b)  According to information and explanations given to us, dues in respect of Sales tax, Income tax, Custom
duty, Wealth Tax, Service Tax / Goods and Service tax, Excise duty, Value Added Tax and Cess and other
material statutory dues have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of dispute at
31st March 2025 is as under:

Name of the Nature of Amount (Rs  |Period to which Forum Where dispute
statute the dues In thousand) |the amount relates is pending

Income Tax Income Tax 14,222.38 AY.2017-18 Commissioner (Appeals)
Act, 1961

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (@) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) No funds have been raised on short-term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
or joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, Clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.
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(x) (@) TheCompany hasnotraised moneysbyway of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully or partly or optionally) during the year under review and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowledge, no material fraud on the Company and no fraud by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section 143 (12) of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report by the statutory auditors.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year and upto the date of this report.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, and based on our verification of records
of the Company and on the basis of review and approvals by the Board and Audit Committee, the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have taken into consideration, the reports of the Internal Auditors received by the company during the
year and provided to us while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to in section 192 of the Act.
Accordingly, Clause 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable.

(xvi)(@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is required to be Registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the said registration has been obtained.

(b) The Company has conducted the Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has not
conducted any Housing Finance activities and is not required to obtain CoR for such activities from the RBI.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group (as defined under Master Direction DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) has no CIC as part of the group.

(XVII) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately precedin financial
g
year, the company has incurred cash losses during the financial year Rs. 88, 737.35 thousands.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence, the provisions
of clause clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable
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(xix)On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanation given by the company, the Company is not required to spend amount
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

For S. N. Kulkarni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 105441W

G.V.Samant

(Partner)

Date : 29th May 2025 Membership No. 14802
Place : Mumbai UDIN: 25014802BNUJPC6193
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial
statements of Peerless Financial Services Limited

Referred to in paragraph [6(iii)(f)]] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Peerless Financial
Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accountingrecords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements include obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company'’s internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

4. A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
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preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

5.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. N. Kulkarni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 105441W

G.V.Samant
(Partner)

Date : 29th May 2025 Membership No. 14802
Place : Mumbai UDIN: 25014802BNUJPC6193
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in Rs. thousand)

As on 31st As on 31st
Particulars Note No. March, 2025 March, 2024
ASSETS
(I) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalent 5 1,175.01 73,130.17
(b) Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 6 1,33,000.00 -
(c) Loans 57.1 - -
(d) Investments 7 - 4.06,678.10
(e) Other Financial assets 8 3,51,913.33 909.06
4,86,088.34 4,80,717.33
(II) Non Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 21,940.84 21,606.65
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 700.40 1,275.07
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 1,577.52 12,124.56
(d) Right of use asset 12 - 11,441.26
(e) Intangible Assets under development 13 - 7,545.70
(f) Other Intangible Assets 14 113.20 347.03
(g) Other Non Financial Assets 15 1,009.62 1,417.54
25,341.58 55,757.81
Total Assets 5,11,429.92 5,36,475.14
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(I) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - 65.91
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 16 433.35 101.63
(I) Other Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - -
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 635.45 18,090.04
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 18 - 12,626.69
1,068.80 30,884.27
(II) Non Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 19 229.99 1,016.98
(b) Other Non Financial Liabilities 20 167.16 772.74
397.15 1,789.72
(IIT) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 21 3,72,579.08 3,72,579.08
(b) Other Equity 22 1,37,384.89 1,31,222.07
5,09,963.97 5,03,801.15
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,11,429.92 5,36,475.14
The Notes to Account forms integral part of Financial Statements 1to 64

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Mukerjee Abhishek Tantia Deepankar Bose
Chairman Director Director
DIN-00046690 DIN-07651661 DIN-09450920
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025  Date: 29th May, 2025 Date: 29th May 2025

As per our report of even date

S.N.Kulkarni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 105441W

G.V.Samant

P Biswajit Das Partha Bose
(Partner) . 14802 Company Secretary WholeTime Director & CFO
Membership No. 1480 M. No.A23043 DIN-10745741

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th May, 2025

Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata
Date: 29th May 2025 Date: 29th May 2025

31



PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Simplifinance

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in Rs. thousand)

Note For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars No. 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue from Operations
(i) Interest Income 23 18,008.69 91,454 .58
(ii) Dividend Income 24 - 4.50
(iii) Fees, Charges and Commission Income 25 - 7,017.61
(iv) Net gain on fair value changes 26 - -
(I) Total Revenue from Opereations 18,008.69 98,476.69
(II) Other Income 27 18,473.53 11,671.93
(III) Total Income (I + 1I) 36,482.22 1,10,148.63
Expenses
(i) Finance Cost 28 73.76 14,132.87
(i) Employee Benefits Expenses 29 6,760.03 30,127.74
(iif) Impairment on Financial Instrument 574 - (28,196.62)
(iv) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 30 2,864.43 5,429.78
(v)  OtherExpenses 31 15,174.17 1,88,890.85
(IV) Total Expenses 24,872.39 2,10,384.62
(V) Profit / (Loss) before tax (III - IV) 11,609.83 (1,00,235.99)
(VI) Tax Expenses

(i) Current Tax 40 3,874.00 -

(ii) Deferred Tax- Charges / (Credit) 10.1 825.93 3,074.35

(ii) Tax of earlier years - 18.98

4,699.93 3,093.33

(VII) Profit/(Loss) for the period (V - VI) 6,909.90 (1,03,329.32)
(VIII)Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Remeasurement of define benefit Liability- Gain/(Loss) 41 (998.34) 727.30

(ii) Income Tax relating to define benefit obligation 251.26 (183.05)

Other Comprehensive Income (i - ii) (747.08) 544.25
Total Comprehensive Income/(losses) for the year (VII+VIII) 6,162.82 (1,02,785.07)
(X) Earnings per equity share

— Basic (Rs.) 37 0.19 (2.77)

— Diluted (Rs.) 0.19 (2.77)

The Notes to Account forms integral part of Financial Statements 1 to 64
On behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date giigi(aTUkerjee g?::j?;k Tantia giereelﬁgfar Bose
S.N.Kulkarni & Co. DIN-00046690 DIN-07651661 DIN-09450920
C‘hartered Accountants Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Firm Reg. No. 105441W Date: 29th May, 2025  Date: 29th May, 2025 Date: 29th May 2025
G.V.Samant Biswajit Das Partha Bose

(Partner) . 14802 Company Secretary WholeTime Director & CFO

Membership No. 1480 M. No.A23043 DIN-10745741

Place : Mumbai Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025 Date: 29th May 2025 Date: 29th May 2025
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(i) Equity Share Capital
Balance as at March 31, 2025

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the Changesin |Restatedbalance| Changesin | Balance atthe
current reporting period Equity Share |atthe beginning| equity share end of the
Capitaldueto | ofthecurrent | capitalduring current
priorperiod |reporting period| thecurrent reporting
errors year period
372,579.08 — 372,579.08 — 372,579.08
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Balance at the beginning of the Changesin Restated Changesin | Balanceatthe
current reporting period EquityShare | balanceatthe | equityshare end of the
Capitaldueto | beginningof | capitalduring current
prior period the current the current reporting
errors reporting period year period
372,579.08 — 372,579.08 — 372,579.08
(ii) Other Equity
As at March 31, 2025 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Revenue & Surplus
Particulars Capital Securities Special Retained General | Debenture Total
Redemption | Premium | Reserve (in Earning Reserve | Redemption
Reserve terms of Reserve
Section45IC
of Reserve
Bank of
IndiaAct,
1934) *
Balance as at March 31, 2024 8.00 |1,68,380.85 | 30,613.95 | (72780.73) | 5,000.00 131222.07
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - 6,909.90 6,909.90
Remeasurementgain/(loss) ondefined
benefit planincluding deferred tax thereon - (747.08) (747.08)
Transferred to Statutory Reserve 1,381.98 (1,381.98) -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 8.00 |1,68,380.85 | 31,995.93 |(67,999.89) | 5,000.00 - 11,37,384.89

* During the year, Company has not created special reserve under section 45IC of reserve Bank of India Act,1 934 due to losses incurred in the year.

(Refernote 25.3)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Revenue & Surplus

Particulars Capital Securities Special Retained General Debenture Total
Redemption | Premium | Reserve (in Earning Reserve | Redemption
Reserve terms of Reserve
Section45IC
of Reserve
Bank of
India Act,
1934)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 8.00 [1,68,380.85 | 30,613.95 | 30,004.34 5,000.00 |2,34,007.14
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - 1(1,03,329.32) - - 1 (1,03,329.32)
Remeasurementgain/(loss) on defined
benefit plan including deferred tax thereon 544.25 - - 544.25
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 5,000.00 (5,000.00) -
Transferred from Retained earningsto
Special Reserve -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 8.00 [1,68,380.85 | 30,613.95 |(72,780.73) 5,000.00 - 11,31,222.07

year.

The Notes to Account forms integral part of Financial Statements 1 to 64

As per our report of even date

S.N.Kulkarni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 105441W

G.V.Samant
(Partner)
Membership No. 14802

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th May, 2025

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Mukerjee

Chairman
DIN-00046690
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025

Biswajit Das

Company Secretary

M. No.A23043
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May 2025

Abhishek Tantia
Director
DIN-07651661
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025

Partha Bose

During the year, Company has not created special reserve under section 45IC of reserve Bank of India Act,1 934 due to losses incurred in current

Deepankar Bose
Director
DIN-09450920
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May 2025

WholeTime Director & CFO

DIN-10745741
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May 2025
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in Rs thousand)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(Loss) before Tax as per Profit and Loss account 11,609.83 (1,00,235.99)
Add : Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2,864.43 5,429.78
Bad debt written off-Loans - 34,265.49
Capital Work in progress written off 7,545.70 -
Loss on sale of Loans - 1,41,685.66
Impairment allowances for doubtful loans - (28,196.62)
Loss/(profit) on sale of Property Plant Equipment 103.45 -
Finance cost on borrowings - 12,924.66
22,123.40 65,872.97
Less: Dividend Income from Investments - 450
Net gain/(loss) on sale of Current Investments 16,930.93 6,647.21
Net gain/(loss) on Fair Valuation of current investments - (1,144.61)
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 5,192.48 60,365.87
(Increase)/ Decrease in loans and advances and
other assets (3,58,142.06) 5,78,105.34
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payable 265.81 6.03
Increase/ (Decrease) Liabilities/ Provisions (32,472.18) (1,924.73)
Cash generated / (used in ) from Operations (3,85,155.94) 6,36,552.51
Less: Direct Taxes paid (Net) 4,208.19 2,337.65
Net cash flow generated from / (used) in Operating
activities (3,89,364.13) 6,34,214.86
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale or (Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Intangible Assets and movements in Capital work in progress 26,799.95 5,518.99
(Purchase) or sale of Investment 4.06,678.10 (3,20,562.18)
(Purchase) or redemption of fixed deposit (1,33,000.00) 10,000.00
Dividend received - 4.50
Net gain/(loss) on sale of Current Investments 16,930.93 -
Net Cash flow (used) in Investing activities 3,17,408.98 (3,05,038.69)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/(Repayments) from short term borrowings (net)

Interest and other borrowing cost paid

Net cash flow (used) in Financing activities

Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash equivalents as at beginning of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents as at end of the year

(Amount in Rs thousand)

March 31, 2025

(71,955.16)
73,130.17

1,175.01

The Notes to Account forms integral part of Financial Statements 1 to 64

Note :

For the Year ended For the Year ended

March 31, 2024

(2,50,000.00)
(12,924.66)

(2,62,924.66)

66,251.51
6,878.66

73,130.17

1. Theabove Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set outin Ind AS 7, ‘Statement
of Cash Flows’ as notified under Companies Act, 2013.

2. Cash and cash equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of:

As on As on

Particulars 31st March, 31st March,

2025 2024

Cash on hand 0.31 3.62
Balances with banks:

In current accounts 1,174.70 73,126.55

Fixed Deposit — —

1,175.01 73,130.17

As per our report of even date

S.N.Kulkarni & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 105441W

G.V.Samant
(Partner)
Membership No. 14802

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th May, 2025

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Mukerjee
Chairman
DIN-00046690
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025

Biswajit Das
Company Secretary
M. No.A23043
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May 2025

Abhishek Tantia
Director
DIN-07651661

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025

Partha Bose

WholeTime Director & CFO
DIN-10745741

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May 2025

Deepankar Bose
Director
DIN-09450920
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May 2025

36



PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Simplifinance

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

3.1

3.2

Corporate Information

Peerless Financial Services Limited (‘the company') is a public company in India having its corporate office
in Kolkata in the State of West Bengal and registered office at Peerless Bhavan, (3, Esplanade East,
Kolkata - 700069) and is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC)
with Registration No. B.05.05418.

Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements
Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis excepting
certain financial instruments which are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair value/ amortized costs at
the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

The operating cycle been assumed to have duration of 12 months. All Assets and Liabilities have been classified
as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ and Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal
thousands except otherwise stated.

Material Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures are based upon
Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements,
which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the
ability to observe inputs employed for such measurement:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly
for the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes
a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly
review significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation
should be classified.

Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements thereto
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose cost include deemed cost on the
date of transition and comprises purchase price of assets or its construction cost including duties and taxes, inward
freight and other expenses incidental to acquisition or installation and adjustment for exchange differences wherever
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

3.3

34

3.5

applicable and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended for its use.

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and material value and subsequent expenditure on Property,
Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital improvement or other factors are accounted for as separate
components.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

Capital Work-in-progress includes preoperative and development expenses, equipment's to be installed, construction
and erection materials, advances etc. Such items are classified to the appropriate categories of PPE when completed
and ready for intended use.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line method in respect of Plant and Equipment's and Office Equipment's
at all location of the Company.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment's commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
The useful lives as estimated for assets considered for depreciation are as follows:

Category Useful life
Data Processing Equipment 3 Years
Furniture and fixtures, Electrical Machinery 10 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Vehicles

Motor Car 8 Years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, residual values are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost comprising of purchase price inclusive of duties and taxes less accumulated
amount of amortization and impairment losses. Such assets, are amortised over the useful life using straight line
method and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication of the same.

Amortisation / impairment methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate,
at each reporting date.

Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

3.6

3.7

Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of its fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount. Any initial direct costs of
the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. Each lease payments are apportioned between finance
charge and reduction of the lease liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding amount of the liabilities.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless the lease arrangements are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation or another
systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits availed Contingent rentals, if
any, arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and
circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairmentloss is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair value
less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the
use of the assets are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment
at each reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying
amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled
within operating cycle of the company or otherwise these are classified as non-current.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value through
Profitand Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective
and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months
or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are measured at amortized
cost.

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized
cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and interest consists of consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value
and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered
to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers,
the company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference
between the asset’s carryingamount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized
in statement of profit and loss.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Share Capital
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting

all of its liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess
of par value is classified as Securities Premium.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any
tax effects.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there
is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when
there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are accrued in the year in which services are rendered by the employees. Short term employee
benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the related service
isrendered.

Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund etc, are recognised as and when incurred.

Contribution to defined benefit plans consisting of contribution to gratuity are determined at close of the year
at present value of the amount payable using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gain and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized immediately in the Balance
Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to Retained Earnings through Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI")
in the period in which they occur.

Other long term employee benefits consisting of Leave Encashment are determined at close of the year at present
value of the amount payable using actuarial valuation techniques. The changes in the amount payable including
actuarial gain/loss are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Revenue
Interest and Dividend

* The Company follows the accrual method of accounting for recognition of Income excepting in cases of
uncertainties of collections, which are recognized on receipt basis.
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3.12

3.13

3.14

- Interest Income from financing by way of loan is recognised in terms of the respective agreements with
the borrowers using effective interest rate method.

- Dividend from Investments is accounted for when right to receive the same is established.

* Inaccordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), incomes against non-performing
assets are recognised on receipt basis.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost comprises of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of the funds.
All borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method except
to the extent attributable to qualifying Property Plant Equipment (PPE) which are capitalized to the cost of the
related assets. A qualifying PPE is an asset, that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent considered as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is
recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or
other comprehensive income.

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to
or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) measured in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability and such benefit can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with same will be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key sources of estimation and uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect
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4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding
the estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results
are known / materialized and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed below. The key assumptions concerning
the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

Depreciation / amortization and impairment on property, plant and equipment / intangible assets.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated/ amortized on straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives (or lease term if shorter) in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,
taking into account the estimated residual value, wherever applicable.

The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and Intangible Assets whenever there is objective evidence
that the assets are impaired. In such situation Assets' recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of asset's
or cash generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use
the estimated future cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which reflect the current assessment
of time value of money. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations are considered
or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. The Company reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortization and amount
of impairment expense to be recorded during any reporting period. This reassessment may result in change estimated
in future periods.

Arrangements containing leases and classification of leases

The Company enters into service / hiring arrangements for various assets / services. The determination of lease
and classification of the service / hiring arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment
of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s
option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s
economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent
of specialized nature of the leased asset.

Impairment loss allowances of loans and advances

Classification of loans and advances are made as per the guidelines prescribed by RBI. Provision against performing
(standard) and non-performing assets are made as required in terms of prudential norms prescribed by RBI. Further,
assets which are considered non recoverable are fully provided for / written off.

Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses
during the estimation of the provision for income taxes.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Critical estimate of the DBO involves a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation,
mortality, discount rate, anticipation of future salary increases etc. as estimated by Independent Actuary appointed
for this purpose by the Management. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount
and the annual defined benefit expenses.
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4.6

4.7

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated.
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject to change.

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/
claim/litigations/ against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly and
revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Recent accounting developments:- Ind AS amendments
Recent Pronouncement:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,
2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117- insurance contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116-Lease,relating to sale
and leaseback transaction, applicable to the Company w.e.f April 01st 2024. The Company has reviewed the
new pronouncements and based on its evalution has determined that it does not have any significant impact
in its financial statement.
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5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref. As at March As at March

Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024

Cash on hand 0.31 3.62
Balances with banks:

In current accounts 1,174.70 73,126.55

TOTAL 1,175.01 73,130.17

6 Bank Balance other than included in (a) above (Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref. As at March As at March

Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024

Term Deposit with maturity less than 12 months 1,33,000.00 —

TOTAL 1,33,000.00 —_
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8 OTHERFINANCIAL ASSETS (Amount in Rs thousand)

Refer As at March As at March
Particulars Note No 31, 2025 31, 2024
Term Deposit more than 12 months 3,38,000.00 -
Security Deposits 311.00 477.00
Receivable from Related parties 39 7,887.25 -
Other Advances * 427.01 432.06
Interest accrued on FD 5,288.07 -
TOTAL 3,561,913.33 909.06

*Includes advance to Related Party Rs. 380 in thousands (Previous year 415 in thousands)

9 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) (Amount in Rs thousand)
Refer As at March As at March
Particulars Note No 31, 2025 31, 2024
Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 21,940.84 21,606.65
TOTAL 21,940.84 21,606.65

10 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) (Amount in Rs thousand)
Refer As at March As at March
Particulars Note No 31, 2025 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Assets 10.1 700.40 2,294.07
Deferred Tax (Liabilities) 10.1 - (1,019.00)
TOTAL 700.40 1,275.07
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10.1 The following is the components of Deferred Tax Liabilities and Deferred Tax Assets presented in the Balance Sheet:

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Opening (Charge)/ (Charge)/ Closing
Balance Credit in Credit Balance
Particulars April 1, 2024 Profit in other March 31,
and Loss Comprehensive 2025
Income
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Others (841.50) 841.50 - -
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (841.50) 841.50 - -
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for employee benefit (177.50) 23.62 251.26 97.38
Timing Difference between Written Down Value of
Fixed Assets as per books of accounts and Income
Tax Act, 1961 880.84 (277.82) - 603.02
Fair value of Investment 288.08 (288.08) - -
Provisions for employee Benefits 128.55 (128.55) - -
Others 996.60 (996.60) - -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 2,116.57 (1,667.43) 251.26 700.40
Deferred Tax Assets/liabilities (Net) 1,275.07 (825.93) 251.26 700.40
(Amount in Rs thousand)
Opening (Charge)/ (Charge)/ Closing
Balance Credit in Credit Balance
Particulars April 1, 2023 Profit in other March 31,
and Loss Comprehensive 2024
Income
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Provision for employee benefit (89.39) 94.94 (183.05) (177.50)
Others (726.87) (114.63) — (841.50)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (816.26) (19.69) (183.05) (1,019.00)
Deferred Tax Assets
Timing Difference between Written Down Value of
Fixed Assets as per books of accounts and Income
Tax Act, 1961 819.78 61.06 — 880.84
Fair value of Investment (0.37) 288.45 — 288.08
Allowance for ECL 3,688.30 (3,688.30) — —
Provisions for employee Benefits 38.38 90.17 — 128.55
Others 802.64 193.96 — 996.60
Total Deferred Tax Assets 5,348.73 (3,054.66) — 2,294.07
Deferred Tax Assets/liabilities (Net) 4,532.47 (3,074.35) (183.05) 1,275.07
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12 RIGHT OF USE ASSET (Office Premises)

March, 2025

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars Ref. As at March  As at March
Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Gross Block
Openingbalance 19,594 .46 19,594 .46
Additions during the year - -
Disposals/ adjustments/ transfer 27.1 (19,594 .46) -
Closing Balance - 19,594.46
Less: Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Openingbalance 8,153.20 5,401.63
Additions during the year 153.77 2,751.57
Disposal / adjustment / transfer 27.1 (8,306.97) -
Closing Balance - 8,153.20
Net Block - 11,441.26
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars Ref. AsatMarch Asat March
Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Amount Brought forward 7,545.70 7,545.70
Addition during the year: - -
Less: Capitalised during the year - -
Less: Written off During the year 13.1 (7,545.70) -
Total Capital Work In Progress - 7,545.70

13.1 Asmentioned in note 57, during the previous financial year, the Company has completed the sale of its Loan portfolio,
asaresult, the Capital work in progress(CWIP) related to system which is associate with the Loan Books is not usable. Hence
the Company has written off the outstanding balance of CWIP during the current year.

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:

As at March 31, 2025 (Amount in Rs thousand)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

Year 3 years

Particulars

Projectsin progress
Projects temporarily suspended
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As at March 31, 2024 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
Year 3 years
Projects in progress — 20940 303.50 7,032.80 7,545.70

Projects temporarily suspended — — — — _
— 209.40 303.507,032.80 7,545.70

14 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars Ref. As at March  As at March
Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Software
Gross Block
Openingbalance 1,462.46 1,462.46
Additions during the year - -
Disposals/ adjustments/ transfer - -
Closing Balance 1,462.46 1,462.46
Less: Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Openingbalance 1,11543 793.26
Additions during the year 233.83 322.17
Closing Balance 1,349.26 1,115.43
Net Block 113.20 347.03
15 OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars Ref. As at March  As at March
Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Prepaid Expense 228.27 440.54
Input Tax Credit Receivable 538.50 17.64
Gratuity Fund 41(b)(iv) 242.85 959.36
TOTAL 1,009.62 1,417.54
16 TRADE PAYABLES (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars Ref. As at March  As at March
Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - 65.91
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 16.1 433.35 101.63
TOTAL 433.35 167.54
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16.1 Trade Paybles Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years  2-3 years More than  Total
Year 3 years

() MSME — — — -

(i) Others 433.35 — — — 433.35

(i) Disputed dues—MSME — — - _

(iv) Disputeddues-Others — — — - _
433.35 — — — 43335

As at March 31, 2023

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years  2-3 years More than  Total
Year 3 years
() MSME 6591 — — — 65.91
(i) Others 101.63 — — — 101.63
(i) Disputed dues—MSME — — — — —
(iv) Disputeddues-Others — — — — —
167.54 — — — 16754

16.2 Disclosure of trade payable is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of the
suppliers as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” (the Act). Based
on the information available with the Company. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers and
there is no overdue amount outstanding as at the Balance sheet date. Relevant disclosures as required under the

Act are as follows:

(Amount in Rs thousand)

65.91
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Particulars As at March  As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
A) i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier under the MSMED Act 2006 —
ii) Interest on a) (i) above Nil
B) i) Amount of Principal paid beyond the appointed Date Nil
ii) Amount of interest paid beyond the appointed date Nil
(as per Section 16 of the said Act)
C) Amount of Interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment. Nil
D) Amount of Interest accrued and due Nil
E) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable Even in succeeding years Nil
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17 OTHERPAYABLES

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars Ref. As at March As at March
Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024

For others:

- Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises — —

- Others 17.1 635.45 18,090.04

TOTAL 635.45 18,090.04

17.1 Includes amount payable to MD& CEO on account of reimbursement of expenses of Rs Nil (PY Rs. 280.26

thousand).

18 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref. As at March  As at March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Financial Lease Liability 27.1&36.1 - 12,626.69
TOTAL - 12,626.69
19 PROVISIONS (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref. As at March  As at March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits
-On account of Leave 38 b(vii) 217.59 547.45
-On account of Sick leave 38 b(vii) 12.40 469.53
TOTAL 229.99 1,016.98
20 OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref. As at March  As at March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Statutory Dues 134.96 740.54
Bonus payable 32.20 32.20
TOTAL 167.16 772.74
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21 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref. As at March As at March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Authorised Shares

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,50,00,000

10% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each
5,000 (March 31, 2024: 5,000) preference shares 500.00

(March 31, 2024: 10,50,00,000) equity shares 1,050,000.00 1,050,000.00

500.00

1,050,500.00 1,050,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Shares
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,72,57,908

(March 31, 2024: 3,72,57,908 ) equity shares 372,579.08 372,579.08

372,579.08 372,579.08

21.1 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity

is entitled to one vote per share. The Company may declare and pay dividends. The dividend, if any proposed
by the Board of Directors of the Company is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all Preferential amounts in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by them.

21.2 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding : (Amount in Rs thousand)
As at March  As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Number of shares at the beginning 3,72,57,908 3,72,57,908
Add: Additions during the year — —
Number of shares at the end 3,72,57,908 3,72,57,908

21.3 Details in respect of shares in the company held up by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholders Number of Shares Held Number of Shares Held
The Peerless General Finance & Investment

Company Limited

—No of shares held: 34,489,401 34,489,401
—Percentage of shares held: 92.57% 92.57%
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(d) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters is as follows: (Amount in Rs thousand)
As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Promoter Name No.ofshares % Total shares | No.ofshares % Total shares % of change
during the year
THE PEERLESS GENERAL
FINANCE & INVESTMENT
COMPANY LTD 344,89,401 92.57% | 344,89,401 92.57% -
SHIKHA ROY 83,125 0.22% 83,125 0.22% -
JAYANTA ROY 1,37,501 0.37% 1,37,501 0.37% -
DEBASREE ROY 50,000 0.13% 50,000 0.13% -
347,60,027 93.30% |347,60,027 93.30% -
22 OTHER EQUITY (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref As at March  As at March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Capital Redemption Reserve 22.1 8.00 8.00
Securities Premium 22.2 1,68,380.85 1,68,380.85
Security Reserve (in terms of Section 45IC of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934) * 22.3 31,995.93 30,613.95
Retained Earning 224 (67,999.89) (72,780.73)
Debenture Redemption Reserve 225 - -
General Reserve 5,000.00 5,000.00
TOTAL 1,37,384.89 1,31,222.07

22.1 Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve represents the amount of reserve created for Redemption of Redeemable Preference shares.

22.2 Securities Premium Account

Securities Premium Reserve represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities and is available for utilisation
as specified under Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

22.3 Statutory Reserve (created persuant to section 45IC of RBI Act 1934 through) Represent reserve fund

Transfer of specific percentage of net profit every year before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utlised
only for limited purpose as specified by RBI from time to time and every such utilisation shall be reported to RBI within
specified period of time from date of such utilisation.

22 .4 Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represents the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated earnings of the company.
22.5 Debenture Redemption Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve represents the amount of reserve created for Redemption of Non convertible Debentures.
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23 INTEREST INCOME (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

On Financial instruments measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on Loans and Advances * - 90,762.70
Interest on term deposit with Banks 18,008.69 691.88
TOTAL 18,008.69 91,454.58

Includes amount interest income of related party Rs. Nil thousand for the year ending 31st March 2025 (March

31, 2024 : Rs. 36.63 thousand)

24 DIVIDEND INCOME (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
On Shares — 450
TOTAL —_ 4.50
25 FEES, CHARGES AND COMMISSION INCOME (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Upfront Fees and other charges — 7,006.93
Commission Income — 10.68
TOTAL —_ 7,017.61
26 NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain/(Loss) on fair value changes of
Financial Assets — —
TOTAL —_ —
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27 OTHER INCOME (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Recoveries in written off accounts 170.00 -
Profit on sale of Property plant & Equipments 10.99 -
Profit on sale of Right on Property - 6,015.17
Net Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund 16,930.93 5,502.60
Interest on Income tax refund 107.87 -
Miscellaneous Income 27.78 154.17
Lease Termination 27.1 1,225.96 -
TOTAL 18,473.53 11,671.93

27.1 During the current year, Company had terminated certain Lease agreements, resulting in the derecognition of the

related Right of use assets and corresponding lease liablities. The net impact of the derecognition recorded in the
income statement as gain of Rs. 1,225.96 thousands.

28 Finance Cost (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
On Lease Rent 36.1 73.76 1,208.21
On Borrowings - 12,924.66
TOTAL 73.76 14,132.87
29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, Wages and Bonus, etc. 29.1 5,545.91 27,166.24
Contribution to Provident Fund and
Administrative Charges and ESI contribution 38(a) 270.94 1,892.69
Staff Welfare expenses 943.18 1,068.81
TOTAL 6,760.03 30,127.74

29.1 Includes Salary to Managing Director Rs. 101.71 thousand (Previous Year Rs. 6,720.84 thousand).
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30 DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 11 2,476.83 2,356.04
Depreciation of Right of Use Asset
(Leasehold Premises) 12 153.77 2,751.57
Amortisation of Other Intangible Asset 14 233.83 322.17
TOTAL 2,864.43 5,429.78
31 OTHER EXPENSES (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent 36.2 858.00 23.00
Repairs & maintenance 1,075.42 986.82
Rates and Taxes 544,13 1,065.79
Auditors Remuneration

Audit Fees 225.00 225.00

Tax Audit Fees 40.00 40.00

Certificate 60.00 60.00
Legal and Professional Fees 1,883.95 2,907.83
Filing Fees 8.88 4.20
Travelling Expenses 657.67 2,349.66
Advertisement and Business Promotion 27.06 570.35
Support service 390.00 300.00
Directors' Sitting Fees 410.00 570.00
Bad debt Written off 57.2 & 57.3 - 34,265.49
Insurance Expense 24.02 27.65
Loss on sale of Loans 57.1 - 1,41,685.66
Loss on sale of PPE 11444 -
Loss on written off Capital work in progress 13.1 7,545.70 -
Miscellaneous Expenditure 1,309.90 3,809.40
TOTAL 15,174.17 1,88,890.85
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32

33

34

35

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
(to the extent not provided for)

(a) Contingent Liabilities:

In respect of Income tax matters pending for appeal for Assessment year 2017-18 as on 31st March 2025:
Rs 14,222.38 thousands (as on 31 st March 2024: 16,487.71 thousand)

In the opinion of the Management the above demands are not tenable and future cash outflows in respect
of the same are determinable on the outcome of decisions pending with relevant Authorities.

(b) Commitments: Nil

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide its letter dated 05.12.2011 has granted the approval to carry on the business
of aloan company. Investments, other assets and liabilities or proceeds thereof are therefore intended to be utilized
for the said business activity.

In view of the above, the Company operates in a single primary business and secondary geographical segment
and hence, disclosure requirements of IND AS 108 on Operating Segments are not applicable to the Company.

The Company as per the professional advice received on application of RBI Circular No. DNBR (PD) CC.No.002/
03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014 (the Circular) and notifications issued by RBI on 27.03.2015 and
10.04.2015 for implementation thereof, has been classified as Non-Systemically Important Company. Various
provisions and directions have accordingly been complied with and reported upon from time to time. In terms
of the said advice, the Circular read with notifications as above dealing with aggregation of the assets of all the
NBFC of the Group for the purpose of classification has not yet been made effective and as such is not applicable
to the Company.

36 Leases

36.1 Followingtable summarizes other disclosures including the note references for the expense, asset and liability heads

under which certain expenses, assets and liability items are grouped in the financial statements :

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Refer For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) Depreciation charge for Right-of -Use

assets for Leasehold premises 12 153.77 2,751.57
ii) Interest expense on lease liabilities 28 73.76 1,208.21
iii) Carrying amount of right-of-use assets

at the end of the reporting period 12 - 11,441.26
iv) Lease liability 18 - 12,626.69

36.2 Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted Cash flow as at 31 March 2025

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payable within 1 year - 3377.95
Payable later than 1 year but not later than 5 year - 7943 .47
Above 5 years - 5,894.52
Total minimum lease payment - 17,215.94
Lease rental recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss (Note 31) 858.00 23.00

59



PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Simplifinance

Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2025

37 Calculation of Earning Per Share is as follows: (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Net profit for basic and diluted earnings per 6,909.90 (1,03,329.32)
share as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Net profit for basic and diluted earnings per share 6,909.90 (1,03,329.32)

b) Weighted average number of equity shares for
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
(Face value Rs. 10/- per share)
Number of equity shares outstanding as on 31st March 37,257,908 37,257,908

Number of equity shares considered in calculating basic 37,257,908 37,257,908
and diluted EPS

c¢) Earnings per share (EPS) of Equity Share of Rs. 10 each:
i) Basic (Rs.) 0.19 (2.77)
ii) Diluted (Rs.) 0.19 (2.77)

38 PostRetirement Employee Benefits
The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits”’ are given below:

a) Defined Contribution Plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognized for the year are as under :
(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 29 158.50 9717.72
Employer’s Contribution to ESI 29 18.40 156.57
Contribution to Employees' Deposit

Linked Insurance Scheme(EDLI) 29 5.75 43.22
Employer's Contribution to Pension Fund 29 88.29 715.18
Total 270.94 1,892.69

b) Defined Benefit Plans

The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as givingrise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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Based on actuarial valuation report of the actuary, disclosures with respect to gratuity liability ascertained based on
actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year are as follows:

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Gratuity
2024-25 2023-24
i) Change in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 2,237.24 2,650.00
Interest Cost 130.14 168.54
Current Service Cost 191.97 505.21
Actuarial (gain) / loss  on obligations 1,011.34 (673.01)
Liablities Settled (2,300.19) -
Benefits paid (876.35) (413.51)
Liability at the end of the year 394.14 2,237.24
2024-25 2023-24
ii) Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Asset
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 3,690.59 3,242.30
Contributions by the Company 0.26 594 .84
Interest on Plan Assets 234.72 212.67
Benefits paid (876.35) (413.51)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets 13.00 54.29
Assets Settled (2,300.19) -
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 762.03 3,690.59
2024-25 2023-24
iii)) Actual return on Plan Asset
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets 13.00 54.29
Actual Return on Plan Assets 13.00 54.29
2024-25 2023-24
iv)] Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the year 394.14 2,237.24
Amount not recongised due to asset limit 125.05 494.00
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 762.03 3,690.59
(242.84) (959.36)
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(Amount in Rs thousand)

Gratuity
2024-25 2023-24
V) Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Current Service Cost 191.97 505.21
Interest Cost (104.58) (44.13)
Net Actuarial (gain) / loss on remeasurement recognised in OCI 998.34 (727.30)
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognised in Profit and
Loss and OCI 1,085.73 (266.21)

vi) Percentage allocation of plan assets in respect of fund managed by insurer/trust is as follows:

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref. As at March  As at March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025 31, 2024
Central Government Securities 0% 0%
State Government Securities 0% 0%
High quality Corporate bonds 0% 0%
Equity Shares of listed companies 0% 0%
Property 0% 0%
Special Deposit Scheme 0% 0%
Policy of Insurance 100% 100%
Bank Balance 0% 0%
Other Investments 0% 0%
Total 100% 100%

vii) Compensated Absences
The obligation for compensated absences is recognized in the same manner as gratuity except remeasurement benefit
which istreated as part of OCI. The actuarial liability of Compensated Absences (unfunded) of accumulated privileged
and sick leaves of the employees of the Company as at March 31, 2025 is given below:

(Amount in Rs thousand)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Privileged Leave 217.59 547.45
Sick Leave 12.40 46943
Principal Actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date
Discount Rate 6.55% 7.20%
Salary Growth Rate 8.00% 8.00%

Notes:
Assumptions relating to future salary increases, attrition, interest rate for discount & overall expected rate of return on

Assets have been considered based on relevant economic factors such as inflation, market growth & other factors
applicable to the period over which the obligation is expected to be settled.
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Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars Gratuity
Remeasurement - Actuarial loss/(gain) 998.34
For the year ended March 31, 2025 998.34
Remeasurement - Actuarial loss/(gain) (727.30)
For the year ended March 31, 2024 (727.30)

Sensitivity analysis: (Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars Change in Effect in Gratuity
Assumption Obligation

For the year ended 31st March, 2025
Discount Rate +0.50% 391.98
-0.50% 396.32
Salary Growth Rate +0.50% 396.28
-0.50% 392.00

For the year ended 31st March, 2024
Discount Rate +0.50% 2,187.70
-0.50% 2,289.78
Salary Growth Rate +0.50% 2,256.45
-0.50% 2,217.31

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur,and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (projected unit credit
method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised within the Balance Sheet.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating

the sensitivity of the defined benefit

Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars Gratuity
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 392.14
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 11.64
01 Apr 2027 to 31 Mar 2028 7.53
01 Apr 2028 Onwards 14.01
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39. Related party disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24 on Related Party Disclosures are as follows:

A)

Names of related parties and
description of relationship

1) Holding Company

2) Associates, Group Enterprises and
Companies under common control

3) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
and their close member

Category

Category |

Category 11

Category III

Particulars

The Peerless General Finance &
Investment Company Limited

Peerless Hospitex Hospital &
Research Center Limited

Peerless Financial Products Distribution Ltd.
Peerless Securities Limited

Peerless Commodities Limited

Bengal Peerless Housing Development
Company Limited

Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Limited

Peerless Hotels Ltd.

Kaizen Leisure & Holidays Ltd.

Shikha Holdings Pvt. Limited

Bichitra Holdings Pvt Limited

Mr. Abhishek Tantia-Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer (Till 11th April 2024)

Mr. Partha Bose — Chief Financial Officer
(Whole time director from 07th October 2024)

Mr. Biswajit Das — Company Secretary &
Chief Compliance Officer

Mr. Deepak Mukerjee (Independent Director)

Mr. Dipankar Chatterji (Independent Director)
(upto 06.05.2024

Mr. Deepankar Bose (Independent Director)
Mr. Supriyo Sinha(Non- executive Director)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Mukhuty (Director)

Mr. Abhishek Tantia-(Non executive Director)
(From 12th April 2024)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

40 Tax Expenses- Current Tax (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for Current Tax 3,874.00 —
3,874.00 —_
40.1 Components of Tax Expense: (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current tax

In respect of the current year 3,874.00 —
Total Current tax expense recognised in the current year 3,874.00 —_
Deferred tax

In respect of the current year 825.93 3,074.35
Total Deferred tax expense recognised in the current year 825.93 3,074.35
Total Tax expense recognised in the current year 4,699.93 3,074.35

40.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax
Arising on income and expenses recognised in
other comprehensive income:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 251.26 (183.05)
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 251.26 (183.05)
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other
comprehensive income into:-
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 251.26 (183.05)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss — —
41 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (Amount in Rs thousand)
Ref Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Items that will not be reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 39 b(v) (998.34) 727.30
(998.34) 727.30
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carryingamount and fair value are as follows:-
(Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars Ason31stMarch, 2025 Ason31stMarch, 2024

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets
Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalents 1,175.01 1,175.01 73,130.17 73,130.17
Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 1,33,000.00 1,33,000.00 - -
Other Financial Assets 3,51,913.33 3,51,913.33 909.06 909.06
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account

Investment in Mutual Funds - - 4,06,678.10 | 4,06,678.10
Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Trade Payables 433.35 433.35 101.63 101.63
Other Payables 635.45 635.45 18,090.04 18,090.04
Other Financial Liabilities - - 12,626.69 12,626.69

Fair Valuation Techniques

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, loans, trade payables,trade receivables, financial liabilities and assets approximate their
carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Investments traded in active market are determined by reference to the quotes from the Stock exchanges as at the reporting date.
Investments in liquid and short-term mutual funds are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the
quantity held. Quoted Investments for which quotations are not available have been included in the market value at the face value/
paid up value, whichever is lower. Unquoted investments in mutual funds have been valued based on the historical net asset value
as per the latest audited financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
techniques:-

i) Level 1 :- Quoted prices / published NAV (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. It includes fair value
of financial instruments traded in active markets and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and financial
instruments like mutual funds for which net assets value (NAV) is published by mutual fund operators at the balance sheet date.

ii) Level 2 :- Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). It includes fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on the Company specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable then instrument is included in level 2.

iii) Level 3 :- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). If one or
more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at balance
sheet date:

(Amount in Rs thousand)

As at Fair value measurements at reporting date using
Particulars March 31

2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,175.01 - 1,175.01 -
Bank Balance other than included in (a) above | 1,33,000.00 1,33,000.00
Other Financial Assets 3,51,913.33 -1 3,51,913.33 -
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 433.35 - 433.35 -
Other Payables 635.45 - 635.45 -

As at Fair value measurements at reporting date using

Particulars March 31

2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 73,130.17 - 73,130.17 -
Other Financial Assets 909.06 - 909.06 -
Investment in Mutual Funds/ Equity (Current) 4,06,678.10 | 4,06,678.10 - -
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 101.63 - 101.63 -
Other Payables 18,090.04 - 18,090.04 -
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 12,626.69 - 12,626.69 -

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

The Inputs used in fair valuation measurement are as follows:

Fair valuation of Financial assets and liabilities not within the operating cycle of the company is amortised based on the
Effective Interest Rate.

Fair valuation of Mutual Funds is based on the net present value at current yield to maturity from rates available from
FIMMDA.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Company's activities are exposed to variety of financial risks. The key financial risks includes market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing these risks.
Therisks are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and accordingly financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market fluctuations resulting in variation in the fair value of future
cash flows of a financial instrument. The major components of Market risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments and trade and other payables.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company doesn't have exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates and hence is
not subjected to such risk.

Impairement loss

The company establishes an allowances for impairement that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of doubtful
loans.The company reviews the credit quality of loans based on the ageing of the loan period end.

Inputs considered in the ECL model

The company applies the simplified approach to providing for expected creditlosses prescribed by IND AS 109. The company
has computed expected creditlosses based on a provision matrix which uses historical creditloss experience of the repective
business.

The company categorizes loan assets into stages primarily based on the Days past due status.

Stage 1 : 0-60 days
Stage 2 : 60 to 180 days
Stage 3 : More than 180 days

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and cash equivalents, investment and deposits with banks are neither past due norimpaired. Cash and cash equivalents
with banks are held with reputed and credit worthy banking institutions.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. The Company's objective is to maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet it's cash and collateral requirements at all
times. The company's assets represented by financial instruments comprising of receivables are largely by borrowed funds
funded against borrowed funds. The company relies on borrowings and internal accruals to meet its fund requirement. The
current committed line of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term fund requirement.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

As atMarch 31,2025 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars Carrying Less than 1to3 3 years 5 years Total
Amount 1 Year Year to 5 years and avove
Trade and other payables 1,068.80 1,068.80 - - - 1,068.80
AsatMarch 31,2024 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars Carrying Less than 1to3 3 years 5 years Total
Amount 1 Year Year to 5 years and avove
Debt Securities — — — — — —
Other Liabilities — — — — — —
Lease Liabilities 17,215.94 3,377.95 7,943.47 5,894.52 — 1721594
Trade and other payables 18,191.67 18,191.67 — — — 18,191.67
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The company has current financial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Company ensures
that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses.

The company relies on operating cash flows to meet its need for funds.

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio
in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company’s objective when managing capital
is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stake holders. The Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure
independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required without

where the risk profile of the Company.

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Loans and borrowings

Other Payable 635.45 12,805.89
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,175.01 73,130.17
Net debt (539.56) (60,324.28)
Equity 5,09,963.97 5,03,801.15
Capital and net debt 5,09,424.41 4,43,476.87
Gearing ratio -0.11% -13.60%

44. Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Year ended 31 March 2025 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars 1 April 2024 Cashflows Exchange Amortization 31March
(net) difference of loan origi- 2025
nation costs
Debt Securities — — — — —
Total — — — — —
Year ended 31 March 2024 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Particulars 1 April 2023 Cashflows Exchange Amortization 31March
(net) difference of loan origi- 2024
nation costs
Debt Securities 2,50,000.00 (2,50,000.00) — — —
Total 2,50,000.00(2,50,000.00) — — —
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45. Details of Benami Property held

There is no Benami Property held or there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

46. Wilful Defaulter
Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

47. During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature
ofloans to promoters,directors, KMP's and the related parties ( as defined under companies Act 2013) ,either severally
or Jointly with any person (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of Repayment

48. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

Thereis no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt/ borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

49. Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

50. Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

51. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

A) The Company has notadvanced orloaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B) TheCompany hasnotreceived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall -

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
52. Undisclosed income

There are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
duringthe year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

53. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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54. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

According to provisions of Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility provision is
not applicable to the company.

55. Relationship with Struck off Companies

Company has not made any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of companies Act,2013 or
Section 560 of Companies Act ,1956.

56. Ratios FY2024-25 | FY2023-24
(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) NA NA
(b) Tier | CRAR NA NA
(c) Tier I CRAR NA NA
(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio NA NA

57 Sale of Loan Portfolio

57.1Pursuanttosection 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and any rule and regulations made thereunder and approval
of the members at general meeting by way of special resolution and consent of the Board of Directors of the Company,
the Company has entered into an agreement to sale of Loan Portfolio outstanding as on 29th February 2024. Loan
book having DPD upto 90 days (Principal + interest+ other charges) were sold to Ugro Capital Limited and Loan book
having DPD above 90 days (only Principal Balances) were sold to Antriksh Vyapaar Limited. The Details of the same

are given below:

Name of Buyer No of DPD Loan book Loss on sale Net
Borrower as on 29th of Loan | Consideration

February2024 | (ReferNote 34)
Ugro Capital Limited 957 upto 90 days 4.20,299.98 63,045.00 3,57,254.98
Antriksh Vyapaar Limited 250 more than 90 days | 1,46,442.65 78,640.66 67,801.99
Total 1207 5,66,742.63 1,41,685.66 4,25,056.97

57.2 Written off Loans Portfolio

In Financial Year 2023-24, Company has written off Loan portfolio amounting to Rs.24,110.59 thousands which
were over due more than 90 days and were not sold to any of the parties mentioned above. Amount written off includes
outstanding principal amounting to Rs. 22,771.01 thousands and interest outstanding amounting to Rs.1,339.58
thousands. This amount shown as bad debt written off under other expenses in note 31.

57.3 Written of Interest Receivable

In financial year 2023-24,the Management has also written off interest receivable on Loan account amounting
Rs.10,154.90 thousands which is due for more than 90 days and which has not been sold to Antriksh Vyapaar
Limited.This amount is shown as bad debt written off under other expenses in note 31.

57.4As of 29th February 2024, certain outstanding loan portfolio was transferred through a sale to a third party and the
portion of the loan portfolio that remained unsold was written off by the company. Consequently, as of 31st March
2024, the company held no outstandingloan portfolio. In light of this, the impairment provision previously created for
these loan assets, amounting to Rs. 28,196.62 thousand, has been written back by during the previous year.
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58 Disclosure as required under RBI notification

As mentioned in note no. 57.1 ,57.2 & 57.3 certain portion of loan portfolio outstanding as on 29th February 2024
hasbeen hived off by way of 3rd party sale. The remainingloan portfolio outstanding along with interest balance which
was not considered in 3rd party sale tansaction has been written off by the Company. As a result there were no loan
balance outstandingas on 31st March 2024. Hence certain disclosure as per RBlI circular is not given for the F.Y.2023-
24 and F.Y.2024-25.

59
RBI

Disclosure as required under Guidelines on Resolution framework for Covid-19 -related stress issued by

During the year, to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress, the Company has invoked resolution plans for eligible
borrowers based on the parameters laid down in accordance with the resolution policy approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company and in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI on Resolution Framework 2.0 dated

5 May 2021.

i) Disclosure on Resolution Framework 2.0 implemented in terms of RBI circular no. RBI/2021-22/31
DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May 2021 (Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses)

For the year ended

31 March 2025

(Amount in Rs thousand)

Type of Borrower

(A)

(B)

€

(D)

(E)

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan —
Position as at the
end of the previous

Of (A), aggregate debt
that slipped into NPA
during the half-year

Of (A) amount
written off during
the half-year

Of (A) amount paid
by the borrowers
during the half-year

(Refer note 1)

Exposure to
accounts classified
as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan —
Position as at the

half-year end of this half-
year®
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Amount in Rs thousand)
Type of Borrower (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan —
Position as at the
end of the previous

Of (A), aggregate debt
that slipped into NPA
during the half-year

Of (A) amount
written off during
the half-year

Of (A) amount paid
by the borrowers
during the half-year

(Refer note 1)

Exposure to
accounts classified
as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan —
Position as at the

half-year end of this half-
year *
Personal Loans 2,060.34 — 1,499.33 561.02 —
Corporate persons — — — — —
Of which, MSMEs 3,651.66 — 1,980.46 1,671.20 —
Others 1,153.67 — — 1,153.67 —
Total 6,865.67 — 3,479.78 3,385.88 —

* represents the closing balance of loan accounts as at 31 March 2024
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Notel: During the year, Company has entered into an agreement to sale of Loan Portfolio to Ugro Capital Limited and Antriksh
Vyapaar Limited, hence amount recovered shown in above table is includes amount received from Ugro Capital Limited and
Antriksh Vyapaar Limited. (Refer note 8.1)

No. of accounts restructured Amount (Rs in thousands)

ii) Disclosure on Resolution framework 2.0 implemented in terms of RBI circular no.RBI/2021-22/32 DOR.STR.REC.11/
21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May 2021 ( Resolution of covid-19 related stress of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises)
(MSMEs)

For the year ended 31st March 2025 & 31st March 2024 -Nil (refer note 58)

60 Disclosure as required under RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No0.109/22.10.106/2019-
20 dated 13 March 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

A comparison between provisions required under IRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind As 109
For the year ended 31st March 2025: Nil (refer note 58)
For the year ended 31st March 2024: Nil (refer note 58)

61 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 -
Disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022

For the year ended 31st March 2025 & 31st March 2024-Nil (Refer note 58)
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63 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 -
Disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022 (continued)

C) Disclosure of complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices

of Ombudsman
Sr. No Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year — —
2 Number of complaints received during the year — 1.00

Number of complaints disposed during the year — —

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC — —

4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year — 1.00
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of
Ombudsman

5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC — —
from Office of Ombudsman

5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC — —
by Office of Ombudsman

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/ — —
mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman

53 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards — —
by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC

6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated — —

time (other than those appealed)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

64 Figuresrelatingto previous years have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever necessary.

Signature to Notes to Accounts

On behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date Deepak Mukerjee Abhishek Tantia Deepankar Bose

. Chairman Director Director
S.N.Kulkarni & Co. DIN-00046690 DIN-07651661 DIN-09450920
C‘hartered Accountants Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata
Firm Reg. No. 105441W Date: 29th May, 2025  Date: 29th May, 2025 Date: 29th May 2025
G.V.Samant Biswajit Das Partha Bose
(Partner) Company Secretary WholeTime Director & CFO
Membership No. 14802 M. No.A23043 DIN- 10745741
Place : Mumbai Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata
Date: 29th May, 2025 Date: 29th May 2025 Date: 29th May 2025
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Annex 1

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Liabilities side :

(1)

Loans and advances availed by the non-banking
financial company inclusive of interest accrued

thereon but not paid :
(@) Debenture: Secured
: Unsecured

(other than falling due within the
meaning of public deposits*)

Deferred Credits
Term Loans

a0 g

Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

)

Commercial Paper

=

Other Loans (Specific nature)

*

Please see Note 1 below

Amount
outstanding

Amount
overdue

Break-up of (1) (f) above / outstanding public
deposit inclusive of interest accrued
threreon but not paid:

In the form of unsecured debentures

In the form of partly secured debentures i,e debentures
where there is shortfall in the value of security

Other publicdeposits

* please see Note 1 below

Assets side :

Amount outstanding

3)

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivable [other than those included in (4)
below]:

(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured
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(4) | Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
other Assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financiallease
(b) Operatinglease
(i)  Stockon hire including the hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assetson hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) Otherloans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loanswhere assets have beenrepossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

(5) | Break-up of Investments

Current Investments
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
( Debentures and Bonds
(iif) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debenturesand Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v) Others (please specify)

1

=
=

Long Term Investments

1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debenturesand Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v)  Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debenturesand Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v)  Others (please specify)

82



PEERLESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Simplifinance

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above :
Please see note 2 below
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured
1. RelatedParties™*
(a) Subsidiaries — —
(b) Companies in the same group — —
(c) Others related parties — —
2. Otherthanrelated parties — —
Total — —
(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities

(both quoted and unquoted)
Please see note 3 below

Category Amount net of provisions
Market value/ Bookvalue
Break up or Fair Net of
Value or NAV Provisions

1. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries — —
(b) Companies in the same group — —
(c) Otherrelated parties — —

2. Otherthanrelated parties — —

Total — —

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (please see Note 3)

(8) Other Information

Particulars Amount

Gross Non-Performing Assets —
(a) Related Parties —
(b) Other than related parties —

(ii)

Net Non-Performing Assets —
(a) Related Parties —
(b) Other than related parties —

(iii)

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt —

Notes: 1.

2.

As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 1998.

Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Non- Systemically important Non Banking Financial
(Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 or sytemically
Important Non Banking Financial ( Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2015 whichever is applicable.

All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of investments and
other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and
breakup/fair value/ NAV in respect of unquoted investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether they are
classified as long term or current in (4) above.
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